Cabinet (Special)

DATE: Tuesday 28 May 2013
TIME: 7.30 pm
VENUE: Committee Rooms 1 & 2,

Harrow Civic Centre

MEMBERSHIP

Chairman: Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar (Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Business Transformation and Communications, Finance,
Performance, Customer Services and Corporate Services, Property
and Major Contracts)

Portfolio Holders:

Councillor Krishna James Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing
Councillor Zarina Khalid Children, Schools and Families
Councillor Asad Omar Deputy Leader, Community and Cultural Services,

Environment and Community Safety and Housing
Councillor William Stoodley Planning and Regeneration

Non Executive Cabinet Members (non voting):

Councillor Susan Hall Leader of the Conservative Group
Councillor Barry Macleod- Deputy Leader of the Conservative Group
Cullinane

(Quorum 3, including the Leader and/or Deputy Leader)

Contact: Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 020 8424 1881 E-mail: daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk

( %f/‘/‘ﬂ&tCDUNCIL )

LONDON



AGENDA - PART I
1.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests
arising from business to be transacted at this meeting from:

(@) all Members of the Cabinet; and
(b)  all other Members present.

2. PUBLIC QUESTION

To receive a public question in relation to agenda item 3 below, which had
duly been submitted for consideration at 9 May Cabinet meeting.

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

3. FUTURE ORGANISATION OF CANNON LANE FIRST SCHOOL (4-7
YEARS) AND CANNON LANE JUNIOR SCHOOL (Pages 1 - 38)

Report of the Corporate Director of Children and Families.

RESOURCES

4, SPECIAL NEEDS TRANSPORT CHANGE PROGRAMME 3 (SNT 3) -
REFERRAL BY CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE (Pages 39 - 86)

Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services.

AGENDA - PART Il - Nil

* DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE

The Council will record items 4 and 5 (Public and Councillor Questions) to help ensure the
accuracy of the published minutes, which will be produced after the meeting.

The recording will be retained for one month after the date of publication of the minutes,
after which it will be destroyed.

Publication of decisions Wednesday 29 May 2013

Deadline for Call in 5.00 pm on 5 June 2013

Decisions implemented if not Called in 6 June 2013

Cabinet - Tuesday 28 May 2013



Agenda Item 3

CABINET Pages 1 to 38
Date of Meeting: 28 May 2013
Subject: Future Organisation of Cannon Lane First
School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior
School
Key Decision: Yes

Responsible Officer: Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of
Children and Families Services

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Zarina Kalid, Portfolio Holder for
Children, Schools and Families

Exempt: No

Decision subject to  Yes

Call-in:
Enclosures: Appendix A — Decision Makers Guidance
Appendix B — Cannon Lane First School
representation
Appendix C — Cannon Lane Junior School
representation

Appendix D — representation from a parent

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

Statutory Proposals were published in March 2013 that would effect the
amalgamation of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane
Junior School. Cabinet approval is sought to enable the two schools to
combine in September 2013.

Recommendations:

Cabinet is requested to determine the statutory proposals in relation to
Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior School to
enable the amalgamation of the two schools in September 2013, namely to:

» Extend the age range of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) to

( %I/‘/WMDUNCIL )
1 LONDON



establish a primary school with an age range of 4 years (Reception) to
11 years (Year 6) from 1 September 2013;

» Expand the capacity of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) from 1
September 2013;

» Discontinue Cannon Lane Junior School on 31 August 2013.

Reason: (For recommendation)

In line with the Council’s amalgamation policy, combining the two schools
would give the opportunity to further improve educational standards by
enabling planning as a coherent whole across the primary phase of the
national curriculum and providing greater flexibility across and between key
stages. Access to the whole primary curriculum supports and informs whole
school planning, assessment, pastoral systems, etc, and provides
opportunities for wider staff development and experience across the full
primary phase.

Section 2 - Report

Introductory paragraph

1. Harrow’s vision is to provide high achieving schools at the centre of community
services, and to continue improvement in schools to make education in Harrow
even better. In order to further this vision, in October 2007 Cabinet agreed its
strategic approach to school organisation, which included an amended
amalgamation policy that was further clarified by Cabinet in 2008.

Options considered
2. Cabinet have the following options when considering these proposals:
a. Reject the proposals;
b. Approve the proposals;
c. Approve the proposals with modification e.g. in relation to the
implementation date;
d. Approve the proposals subject to meeting a separate condition.

3. There are separate proposals for the two schools, however these are linked and
the proposals should be considered together.

Background

2. The Headteacher of Cannon Lane Junior School will retire at the end of this
academic year in August 2013. During the Autumn Term 2012, the governing
bodies of the two schools commenced the process to amalgamate the two
schools in accordance with the Council’'s amalgamation policy. The
amalgamation policy requires separate infant/first and junior schools to



amalgamate when one or more of the triggering circumstances arise unless
there are compelling and over-riding reasons not to. A headteacher vacancy in
either or both schools is one of the triggering circumstances.

3. There are two key stages to the processes leading to a decision to amalgamate
two schools:

» Statutory consultation. The amalgamation policy requests the governing
bodies of the schools make written recommendations following the
consultation period.

» Publication of statutory proposals, which is followed by a 6 week
representation period.

Statutory Consultation

4. The statutory consultation was held from Monday 14 January 2013 until Friday 8
February 2013. This consultation met the requirements of the Department for
Education School Organisation and Competitions Unit guidance on closing,
expanding and making changes to schools. Two thirds of the written responses
received from adults support combining the two schools (73% of parental
responses were in support). The outcomes of the statutory consultation are
reported under ‘Other issues’ in Appendix A.

4. The recommendations of the Governing Bodies following the statutory
consultation were:
» Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) Governing Body considers it is in the
best interests of the children that both schools should amalgamate.
e Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body recommends that the schools
stay separate and believes there are compelling and over-riding
educational reasons for the schools to remain separate.

5. The Joint Steering Group established by the two governing bodies to plan the
consultation of the school communities agreed a timeline for the statutory
processes to achieve final decision by May 2013. In order to achieve this
timescale, a Portfolio Holder decision was made on 28 February 2013 to publish
statutory proposals. In making this decision, the Portfolio Holder considered the
outcome of the statutory consultation and the recommendations of the two
governing bodies.

6. The statutory proposals that were published were to extend the age range and
capacity of the first school and to discontinue the junior school. In accordance
with usual practice in implementing the policy, the junior school is proposed to be
legally discontinued because there will be no substantive headteacher in post at
that school.

Statutory proposals
7. Linked statutory proposals were published on 7 March 2013 with a statutory
representation period of 6 weeks that, if approved, would effect the
amalgamation of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior
School to provide an all through primary school:
a. A prescribed alteration to extend the age range of Cannon Lane First
School (4-7 Years) to establish a primary school with an age range of 4
years (Reception) to 11 years (Year 6) from 1 September 2013;
b. A prescribed alteration to expand the capacity of Cannon Lane First School
(4-7 Years) from 1 September 2013;



c. A notice to discontinue Cannon Lane Junior School on 31 August 2013.

Representations made to the published statutory proposals

8.

9.

The local authority received three representations during the representation
period from:
* anindividual who feels that the two schools should not be combined;
» the Governing Body of Cannon Lane Junior School who consider that
combining the schools is not in the best interest of the children at Cannon
Lane Junior School.
* The Governing Body of Cannon Lane First School who confirm their view
that the two schools should combine.
These representations are appended in full to this report. The reasons set out
for these views are summarised in Appendix A under ‘Other issues’ together
with officer comment.

Determination of statutory proposals

In its role as the Decision Maker, Cabinet must have regard to the statutory and
non-statutory guidance, provided by the Department for Education, when
determining statutory proposals. The guidance on expanding a maintained
school by enlargement, making changes to a maintained mainstream school,
closing a maintained mainstream school and giving children and young people a
say have been provided to all Cabinet Members, and are available as
background papers. Appendix A provides Cabinet with commentary on the
salient points contained in the Decision Makers’ Guidance.

Recommendation

10

11.

12.

.The Corporate Director of Children and Families Services recommends that

Cabinet approve the proposals to effect the amalgamation of the two schools
with effect from 1 September 2013. The reasons for this recommendation
include the following.

Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) Governing Body considers it is in the best
interests of the children that both schools should amalgamate. Amalgamation
would produce an enhanced learning environment for all children in both schools
for reasons that include: children would experience the same ethos and
programs of study throughout KS1 and 2; sharing of ‘best practice’ from both
schools, and; a strong school with excellent strategic leadership is in the best
interests of the community it serves.

The recommendation of the Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body that
the schools should remain separate is noted. Full reasons were provided in the
governing body’s response and are summarised under ‘Other issues’ in
Appendix A together with officer comment. However, it is considered that the
reasons given do not constitute compelling and overriding reasons not to
combine the two schools, and they could be fully considered and addressed
through detailed implementation planning should Cabinet decide the schools will
combine.

13. The representation from an individual who feels that the two schools should not

be combined is noted. However it is considered the reasons stated include
positive points about current provision at the school that can be retained and
built upon in a combined school and the reasons do not represent compelling
and overriding reasons not to combine the two schools.



14.

In line with the Council’s amalgamation policy, combining the two schools would
give the opportunity to further improve educational standards by enabling
planning as a coherent whole across the primary phase of the national
curriculum and providing greater flexibility across and between key stages.
Access to the whole primary curriculum supports and informs whole school
planning, assessment, pastoral systems, etc, and provides opportunities for
wider staff development and experience across the full primary phase.

Legal Implications

15.

16.

The Local Authority has a statutory entittement under Sections15 and 19 of the
Education and Inspections Act 2006, to issue statutory proposals in respect of
school reorganisation. The statutory proposals were published on 7 March 2013
following the decision made by the Portfolio Holder on 28 February 2013.
Cabinet must determine the proposals within two months of the representation
period, which ended on 18 April 2013, or the matter is referred to the Office of
the Schools Adjudicator for determination. Cabinet must have regard to the
Secretary of State’s guidance when reaching its decision, and should consider
the representations received during the course of the publication period when
making their decision.

The Decision Makers Guidance states that whilst each case should be
considered on its merits, there is a presumption in favour of approval for
infant/junior school amalgamations.

Financial Implications

17.

18.

The governing body and leadership team of a combined school would have to
plan strategically in a cost effective manner in the best interests of the children in
order to achieve positive outcomes for the children in the long term.

The Government has introduced significant changes to school funding and is
moving towards a national funding formula. Under the Government's new
funding formula the combining of two schools would result in the loss of one
element of 'lump sum' funding allocated to schools. In 2013/14 the lump sum
amount is £142,230. This money would be retained in that financial year if the
schools combine, though currently regulations specify that one lump sum would
be lost in 2014/15 and for each year going forward if lump sum funding is
retained by the Government. There has been a Department for Education (DfE)
consultation with regards to the lump sum and school amalgamations and the
government is currently reviewing this with regards to any changes in the
2014/15 school funding. The outcome from this consultation will be known later
in the year. Current arrangements are that, if the schools were to remain as
separate schools, each school would retain its ‘lump sum’ funding. Though this
is a significant issue it may be considered that it would only put the combined
school in the same position as existing all-through primary schools. There will
be reductions in expenditure through having one headteacher post and the
governing body of the combined school could make decisions that would achieve
efficiencies. No other elements of the school budgets would change.

Performance Issues

19.

Harrow is a high performing Local Authority and the large majority of local
services are judged to be good or better by Ofsted. Schools in Harrow perform
well in comparison to national and statistically similar local authorities. The vast

5



20.

21.

majority of primary schools and secondary schools are judged good or
outstanding. Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) achieved an “outstanding”
judgement at its Ofsted inspection in September 2008. Cannon Lane Junior
School achieved a “good” judgement at its Ofsted inspection in July 2009.

The Schools White Paper and Education Act 2011 maintain a focus on driving up
standards in schools, and place more of the responsibility with the schools
directly for their improvement. The role of the Local Authority in measuring
performance and driving improvement has changed significantly and is reduced
from its previous level. However, the Local Authority maintains a strategic
oversight and enabling role in local education, and is likely to retain some role in
monitoring educational achievement and key measures such as exclusions and
absence. The Local Authority is also statutorily responsible for supporting and
improving underperforming schools.

The Local Authority continues to monitor key education indicators. The
indicators are used locally to monitor, improve and support education at both
school and local authority level; they are also used within information provided to
the DfE.

The indicators fall within the following areas:
Attendance and exclusions - remain a statutory duty for the Local Authority to
monitor and improve;
Narrowing the Gap - is a fundamental part of Ofsted’s school inspection
process, and accordingly the Local Authority monitors the attainment of
identified groups of pupils in its schools, for example SEN children;
Underperforming schools — schools are assessed at Key Stage 2 & Key
Stage 4 against defined floor standards.

Environmental Impact

22.

There is no significant environmental impact arising from these proposals.

Risk Management Implications
23. A summary of high level risks is provided below.

High Level Consequences Mitigating/Control Actions
Risks

Challenge to | Delay. The decision maker must have due regard
decision to the Secretary of State’s guidance for
making. decision makers in reaching its decisions

on school reorganisation proposals.

Clarification of | Confusion  for | In response to issues raised by the DCSF

the Council’'s | stakeholders. in regard to the amalgamation policy, and a
Amalgamation corporate complaint investigation relating to
Policy. a school involved in a school reorganisation

process, Cabinet agreed a clarified policy
at its October 2008 meeting. This
clarification does not change the policy
requirements.




Equalities implications

24. The equality impact assessment indicates that the equalities impact of Cabinet’'s
decision will be effectively neutral. No children would be displaced if the schools
amalgamate or if they stay separate. Harrow’s community schools are inclusive
schools and this would continue in a combined school. The proposal is intended
to build on the many positives already in place at the schools. In an all through
school, there may be benefits for pupils with special educational needs in that
amalgamation might help to alleviate issues of transition as it could provide
continuous support for pupils and a common set of school rules and processes.

Corporate Priorities
25. The proposed amalgamation of the two Cannon Lane schools will support the
Council’'s Corporate Priorities:
* United and involved communities: A Council that listens and leads;
* Supporting and protecting people who are most in need;
by providing opportunities to enhance educational standards and to further
promote positive community outcomes by ensuring the most effective and
coordinated extended services support to families and children, and the use of
school facilities.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Patricia Harvey X | Chief Financial Officer

Date: 10 April 2013

on behalf of the
Name: Matthew Adams X | Monitoring Officer

Date: 15 April 2013

Section 4 - Performance Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: David Harrington x | Divisional Director

Strategic Commissioning

Date: 12 April 2013




Section 5 - Environmental Impact Officer
Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Andrew Baker X Divisional Director

(Environmental Services)

Date: 10 April 2013

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact: Chris Melly, Senior Professional, Education Strategy and School
Organisation 020 8420 9270 chris.melly@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Portfolio Holder decision report 28 February 2013 - Future Organisation of
Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior School.
Portfolio Holder Report
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/s104784/PHD%20report%20Can
non%20Lane%20schools.pdf

Portfolio Holder Decision
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/s104787/Decision%20Notice %20
-%20Cannon%20Lane%20First%20and%20Junior%20Schools.pdf

Department for Education School Organisation and Competitions Unit
guidance for decision makers
http://www.education.gov.uk/schools/leadership/schoolorganisation

Equality Impact Assessment

Call-In Waived by the NOT APPLICABLE
Chairman of Overview
and Scrutiny

Committee [Call-in applies]




Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Future Organisation of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years)
and Cannon Lane Junior School

Decision Makers Guidance

The decision maker for these statutory proposals is the local authority, and this report presents
the proposals to Cabinet for determination. If the local authority fails to decide proposals within
two months of the end of the representation period the local authority must forward proposals,
and any received representations, to the Office of the Schools Adjudicator for decision. This
two month period will end on 18 June 2013.

Decision Makers are required to have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State when
they take a decision on proposals. The guidance documents are available on the School
Organisation and Competitions Unit website at
http://www.education.gov.uk/schools/leadership/schoolorganisation and in Background Papers.

The format of this Appendix follows the framework of the guidance. The text in italics at the
start of each section contains extracts from the guidance to assist members to understand the
context.

Compliance with statutory requirements
There are 4 key issues which the Decision Maker should consider before judging the respective
factors and merits of the statutory proposals:

1. Is any information missing?
If so, the Decision Maker should write immediately to the proposer/promoter specifying a date
by which the information should be provided.

In order to make the nature of the proposals explicit and clear for all stakeholders, the notices
and the complete proposals stated as full information as possible. It is considered that all
necessary information was provided and made available for stakeholders and interested parties
to see.

2. Does the published notice comply with statutory requirements?

The Decision Maker should consider whether the notice is valid as soon as a copy is received.
Where a published notice does not comply with statutory requirements it may be judged invalid
and the Decision Maker should consider whether they can decide the proposals.

Linked statutory proposals were published on 7 March 2013 with a statutory representation
period of 6 weeks that if approved would effect the amalgamation of Cannon Lane First School
(4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior School to provide an all through primary school:
a. A prescribed alteration to extend the age range of Cannon Lane First School (4-7
Years) to establish a primary school with an age range of 4 years (Reception) to 11
years (Year 6) from 1 September 2013;
b. A prescribed alteration to expand the capacity of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years)
from 1 September 2013;
c. A notice to discontinue Cannon Lane Junior School on 31 August 2013.

The statutory proposals had the same closing date of 18 April 2013 for the representation
periods.



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

3. Has the statutory consultation been carried out prior to the publication of the notice?
Details of the consultation must be included in the proposals. The Decision Maker should be
satisfied that the consultation meets statutory requirements. If some parties submit objections
on the basis that consultation was not adequate, the Decision Maker may wish to take legal
advice on the points raised. If the requirements have not yet been met, the Decision Maker
may judge the proposals to be invalid and needs to consider whether they can decide the
proposals. Alternatively the Decision Maker may take into account the sufficiency and quality of
the consultation as part of their overall judgement of the proposals as a whole.

A statutory consultation was held from Monday 14 January 2013 until Friday 8 February 2013.
All applicable statutory requirements have been complied with in relation to the consultation on
the proposals. The local authority has had regard to the Department for Education School
Organisation and Competitions Unit guidance and the consultation document was sent to all
interested parties in accordance with the guidance.

The consultation responses and outcomes (see ‘Other issues’ below) were reported to the
Portfolio Holder for the decision made on 28 February 2013 to publish statutory proposals.

4. Are the proposals linked or “related” to other published proposals?

Any proposals that are “related” to particular proposals must be considered together. Generally,
proposals should be regarded as ‘related” if they are included on the same notice (unless the
notice makes it clear that the proposals are not ‘related”). Proposals should be regarded as
‘related” if the notice makes a reference to a link to other proposals (published under School
Organisation and Trust regulations). If the statutory notices do not confirm a link, but it is clear
that a decision on one of the proposals would be likely to directly affect the outcome or
consideration of the other, the proposals should be regarded as “related”. Where proposals are
‘related”, the decisions should be compatible e.g. if one set of proposals is for the removal of
provision, and another is for the establishment or enlargement of provision for displaced pupils,
both should be approved or rejected.

Linked statutory proposals were published on 7 March 2013 that could effect the amalgamation
of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior School to provide an all
through primary school (see key issue 2 above).

Factors to be considered by decision makers

The factors contained in the Secretary of State’s guidance should not be taken to be
exhaustive. Their importance will vary, depending on the type and circumstances of the
proposals. All proposals should be considered on their individual merits.

The sections that follow contain information to assist Cabinet to determine how the proposals
meet the factors the decision maker must have regard to in reaching a decision. Not all of the
factors contained in the decision makers guidance are relevant to these proposals. For
example: the proposals do not make changes to early years provision or nursery schools; there
are no issues of poor performance; there are no post-16 implications; there is no change to
school category; and there is no special educational needs reorganisation. The effect of the
proposals is to establish an all through primary school, by amalgamating the two separate
schools on the existing school site, that will be the same overall size and character, offering
places to the existing pupils and serving the same area. The following sections, therefore,
focus on relevant factors of the guidance.



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

A system shaped by parents

The Government’s aim is to create a schools system shaped by parents which delivers
excellence and equity. The Education and Inspections Act 2006 amends the Education Act
1996 to place duties on local authorities to secure diversity in the provision of schools and to
increase opportunities for parental choice when planning the provision of schools in their areas.
In addition, local authorities are under a specific duty to respond to representations from parents
about the provision of schools, including requests to establish new schools or make changes to
existing schools. The Government's aim is to secure a more diverse and dynamic schools
system which is shaped by parents. The Decision Maker should take into account the extent to
which the proposals are consistent with the new duties on local authorities.

Parents have shaped Harrow’s schools system, and almost three quarters of the parents that
gave written responses to the consultation were in favour of these proposals.

Strategic Approach to School Organisation

In 2002, the council undertook a debate on School Organisation in Harrow, the outcome of
which was a consensus from stakeholders on three issues: to increase opportunities for early
years; to increase choices and opportunities at post-16 including provision on school sites; and
to change the age of transfer. The council has secured the provision for early years and post-
16, and implemented changes to the ages of transfer in September 2010.

In October 2007, Cabinet agreed its strategic approach to school organisation and agreed a
revised amalgamation policy. The council’s amalgamation policy contributes to maintaining and
improving the educational performance of Harrow schools and their pupils. In October 2008
Cabinet agreed a clarified amalgamation policy and implementation guidance.

Cannon Lane schools proposals
Parents and stakeholders have had the opportunity to contribute and shape the proposals for
the Cannon Lane schools.

The statutory consultation was held from Monday 14 January 2013 until Friday 8 February
2013. The consultation paper was sent to all parents, members of staff and governors on 14
January 2013. Three open consultation meetings for parents, staff and governors of both
schools were held, one on 21 January and two on 29 January 2013, to enable discussion. The
proposal evaluation document was made available from the school offices and Harrow Council
website, and was available at the parents meetings. Information about the responses to this
consultation is given under ‘Other issues’ later in this Appendix.

The local authority received three representations from a parent during the representation
period which ended on 18 April 2013. See ‘Other issues’ below.

Standards

The Government wishes to encourage changes to local school provision where it will boost
Standards and opportunities for young people, whilst matching school place supply as closely as
possible to pupils’ and parents’ needs and wishes. Decision Makers should be satisfied that
proposals for prescribed alterations will contribute to raising local standards of provision, and
will lead to improved attainment for children and young people. They should pay particular
attention to the effects on groups that tend to under-perform including children from certain
ethnic groups, children from deprived backgrounds and children in care, with the aim of
narrowing attainment gaps.



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

The council’s amalgamation policy identifies a number of educational benefits arising from the
creation of all through primary schools:

» Organisational structure is aligned with the National Curriculum Key Stages. Planning
across Foundation, Key Stages 1 and 2 as a coherent whole for the primary phase
provides greater flexibility across and between Key Stages.

* Reducing the number of changes for children in a school system strengthens continuity
and progression for children and families in the primary phase, both in terms of the
curriculum and pastoral experience. This reduction in the number of school moves is
important, particularly for children with special educational needs.

» Greater opportunities are created for older children to take on responsibility. For younger
children the presence of older children provides aspirational role models and also
mentoring support.

» Teachers and classroom staff have access to the whole primary curriculum. This
supports and informs whole school planning, assessment, pastoral systems, etc, and
provides opportunities for wider staff development and experience across the full primary
phase.

* Growing national evidence shows that all-through primary schools create more
consistency between year groups and key stages in learning planning and assessment.

“Where primary education is provided in separate key stages, there is generally
very little effective curriculum continuity and progression. In such situations the
scope for discontinuity of learning is increased, together with the attendant,
wasteful, repetitive teaching of subject content and learning experiences in the
receiving key stage.” Educational Management Information Exchange

Harrow Schools are high performing and overall the local authority is above National Averages
and above or in line with statistical neighbours. Harrow strives for continuous improvement and
has set challenging targets for achievement. These proposals to create a combined school
would contribute to improving standards by building on many aspects of the existing good
practice in both schools.

The proposed all through Cannon Lane School would be a combined three-form entry school.
All schools have their own distinct ethos and identity and relationship with their local community.
These proposals would continue and develop further the existing good practices of these
separate schools as a combined school.

Diversity

The Government’s aim is to transform our school system so that every child receives an
excellent education — whatever their background and wherever they live. A vital part of the
Government’s vision is to create a more diverse school system offering excellence and choice,
where each school has a strong ethos and sense of mission and acts as a centre of excellence
or specialist provision. Decision Makers should consider how proposals will contribute to local
diversity. They should consider the range of schools in the relevant area of the local authority
and whether the alteration to the school will meet the aspirations of parents, help raise local
standards and narrow attainment gaps.



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Schools in Harrow offer diversity to parents both in terms of ethos and size. Harrow has a
Church of England primary school, a Hindu primary school and a Jewish primary school, six
Roman Catholic primary schools and two Roman Catholic high schools. There is an all-through
Hindu free school located in Harrow on a temporary basis. There are a range of sizes of
schools in Harrow including one, two and three forms of entry combined schools, and two and
three forms of entry separate infant and junior schools. There will be some four forms of entry
separate infant and junior schools from September 2013 expanded as part of the primary school
expansion programme. Increased self-governance is promoted within a collaborative whole-
borough framework, for example through partnerships and soft and hard federations.

Harrow schools are popular and successful, but the profile of Harrow’s population is changing
and, to meet challenging targets to continue this status, schools need to evolve and innovate.
The local authority is committed to developing a positive and proactive approach to: encourage
greater self-governance in order to extend choice, diversity and fair access; raise standards as
part of the transformation of education expected from investments; listening to parents and
acting to promote diversity of school provision where this is appropriate.

A combined school would contribute to diversity by its model of governance and that its new
organisation is aligned with parental aspirations.

Every Child Matters

The Decision Maker should consider how proposals will help every child and young person
achieve their potential in accordance with Every Child Matters’ principles which are: to be
healthy; stay safe; enjoy and achieve; make a positive contribution to the community and
society; and achieve economic well-being. This should include considering how the school will
provide a wide range of extended services, opportunities for personal development, access to
academic and vocational training, measures to address barriers to participation and support for
children and young people with particular needs, e.g. looked after children or children with
special educational needs (SEN) and disabilities.

All schools offer extended services, and wrap around care, support for families and a wide
range of opportunities are developed in all schools. These extended services also support the
Narrowing the Gap agenda, and these proposals would provide opportunities to support these
agendas.

An all through school would ensure the most effective and coordinated extended services
support to families and children, and the use of school facilities. As a result of these proposals
it is considered that it would be possible to build on the established best practice of both schools
to promote access to extended services.

Equal opportunity issues

The Decision Maker should consider whether there are any sex, race or disability discrimination
issues that arise from the changes being proposed, for example, that where there is a proposed
change to single sex provision in an area, there is equal access to single sex provision for the
other sex to meet parental demand. Similarly there needs to be a commitment to provide
access to a range of opportunities which reflect the ethnic and cultural mix of the area, while
ensuring that such opportunities are open to all.

These proposals do not make changes to equal access to school provision. The equality
impact assessment indicates that the equalities impact of Cabinet’s decision will be effectively
neutral. No children would be displaced if the schools amalgamate or if they stay separate.

5
13



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Need for places

Where proposals will increase provision, the Decision Maker should consider whether there is a
need for the expansion and should consider the evidence presented for the expansion such as
planned housing development or demand for provision. The Decision Maker should take into
account not only the existence of spare capacity in neighbouring schools, but also the quality
and popularity with parents of the schools in which spare capacity exists and evidence of
parents’ aspirations for places in the school proposed for expansion. The existence of surplus
capacity in neighbouring less popular or successful schools should not in itself prevent the
addition of new places.

These statutory proposals do not lead to the creation of additional places or to the loss of any
places. The overall effect of the linked proposals is to create an all through school with the
same number of places as the existing schools. No pupils would be displaced by the proposals.

To inform the management of school places, the local authority commissions pupil population
projections for Harrow and monitors the pupil numbers in its schools. For the purposes of
school place planning the Borough is divided into Planning Areas. Harrow Council manages the
supply of places across the Borough and within Planning Areas, and proposals are brought
forward to increase or reduce the supply of places accordingly. Harrow considers a range of
options to manage the supply of school places, including temporary expansion, bulge year
groups, and permanent expansion. Harrow has a primary school expansion programme and
the first phase of primary school expansions from September 2013 has been approved by
Cabinet. In November 2012, Cabinet agreed to bring forward statutory processes for a second
phase of permanent expansions and work is being progressed to identify the schools that will be
proposed for expansion.

The population projections indicate a growth in pupil numbers for Harrow that peaks in the
primary sector around 2019. The Cannon Lane schools are located in the North West Primary
Planning Area. The range of increased demand above current available permanent places in
the North West Primary Planning Area is currently projected to be between an additional 70 and
97 pupils per year. The proposal for this planning area is to increase the permanent provision
by 90 places, supplemented by temporary additional Reception classes. The local authority is
currently considering how all schools in the area may contribute to meeting this demand.

Travel and Accessibility for All

In considering proposals for the reorganisation of schools, Decision Makers should satisfy
themselves that accessibility planning has been properly taken into account. Facilities are to be
accessible by those concerned, by being located close to those who will use them, and the
proposed changes should not adversely impact on disadvantaged groups. In deciding statutory
proposals, the Decision Maker should bear in mind that proposals should not have the effect of
unreasonably extending journey times or increasing transport costs, or result in too many
children being prevented from travelling sustainably due to unsuitable routes e.g. for walking,
cycling etc. Proposals should also be considered on the basis of how they will support and
contribute to the local authority’s duty to promote the use of sustainable travel and transport to
school.

As there are no proposals to change the overall size of the school or to change the site, these
proposals would not affect journey times or lead to increased transport costs.

The combined school would build on the existing community use and extended school activities.

Potential use of the school site by the community could be enhanced by the ability to plan for
one school rather than two separate schools.

14



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

School category changes
No changes to school categories (e.g. no changes to become voluntary aided, foundation body,
trust or academy) arise from these proposals.

Funding and land

The Decision Maker should be satisfied that any land, premises or capital required to implement
the proposals will be available. Normally, this will be some form of written confirmation from the
source of funding on which the promoters rely (e.g. the local authority, or Department for
Education). In the case of a local authority, this should be from an authorised person within the
local authority, and provide detailed information on the funding, provision of land and premises
etc. Proposals should not be approved conditionally upon funding being made available, except
for proposals being funded under the Private Finance Initiative or through the Building Schools
for the Future programme.

The statutory proposals are not dependent on capital funding being available. If an all through
school is established, a long-term strategy for the school site as a combined school would be
required. The governing body and leadership team of a combined school would have to plan
strategically in a cost effective manner in the best interests of the children in order to achieve
positive outcomes for the children in the long term.

The Government has introduced significant changes to school funding and is moving towards a
national funding formula. Under the Government’s new funding formula the combining of two
schools would result in the loss of one element of 'lump sum' funding allocated to schools. In
2013/14 the lump sum amount is £142,230. This money would be retained in that financial year
if the schools combine, though current regulations specify that one lump sum would be lost in
2014/15 and for each year going forward if lump sum funding is retained by the Government.
There has been a Department for Education (DfE) consultation with regards to the lump sum
and school amalgamations and the government is currently reviewing this with regards to any
changes for the 2014/15 school funding. The outcome from this consultation will be known later
in the year. Current regulations specify that, if the schools were to remain as separate schools,
each school would retain its ‘lump sum’ funding. Though this is a significant issue it may be
considered that it would only put the combined school in the same position as existing all-
through primary schools. There will be reductions in expenditure through having one
headteacher post and the governing body of the combined school could make decisions that
would achieve efficiencies. No other elements of the school budgets would change.

There are no capital receipts, new sites or playing fields, or land tenure arrangements arising
from these proposals.

Special educational needs (SEN) provision

SEN provision, in the context of School Organisation legislation and the guidance, is provision
recognised by the LA as specifically reserved for pupils with special educational needs. When
reviewing SEN provision, planning or commissioning alternative types of SEN provision or
considering proposals for change local authorities should aim for a flexible range of provision
and support that can respond to the special educational needs of individual pupils and parental
preferences, rather than necessarily establishing broad categories of provision according to
special educational need or disability.

These statutory proposals do not involve a review of special educational needs provision, and
the Special Educational Needs Improvement Test does not apply.

7
15



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

The two schools provide support for pupils with special educational needs for whom a
mainstream school is appropriate and there are no proposals for this to be changed as a
combined school. All pupils attending the schools would transfer to the all through school.

In an all through school, there may be benefits for pupils with special educational needs. There
would be continuity in planning and support across all key stages. In addition, there could be
greater consistency in the organisation and management of the schools, for example, behaviour
policies, school rules, etc.

Other issues

The decision maker should consider the views of all those affected by the proposals or who
have an interest in them. This includes statutory objections and comments submitted during the
representation period. The decision maker should not simply take account of the numbers of
people expressing a particular view when considering representations made on proposals.
Instead the decision maker should give the greatest weight to representations from those
Stakeholders likely to be most directly affected by the proposals.

The local authority received three representations during the representation period:
e a parent who feels that the two schools should not be combined;
* The Governing Body of Cannon Lane First School who confirm their view that the two
schools should combine.
» the Governing Body of Cannon Lane Junior School who consider that combining the
schools is not in the best interest of the children at Cannon Lane Junior School.
These representations are appended in full to this report. The reasons set out for these views
are summarised below together with officer comment.

1. Parental representation

The parental representation is from an individual who feels that the two schools should not be
combined and that it is beneficial for the schools to stay separate. The representation sets out
reasons for this view that include: the First School provides an excellent start to the children’s
education in a safe and caring environment; the Junior School do a brilliant job of building the
children’s confidence in themselves and giving them more responsibility; both schools have
their own identity which should be kept separate; concern that the numbers of children in the
schools will increase affecting the school and the surrounding area.

Officer comment. It is considered the reasons stated include positive points about current
provision at the school that can be retained and built upon in a combined school and the
reasons do not represent compelling and overriding reasons not to combine the two schools.
Increased demand for school places across London means that traditional views about the size
of schools will be challenged.

2. Governing Body of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years)
Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) Governing Body considers it is in the best interests of the
children that both schools should amalgamate for the following reasons:
« Transition between Years 2/3 (KS1/2) would be less stressful for children as they would
no longer have to adapt to a ‘different’ school, causing less disruption and anxiety.
» Consistency in terms of leadership, expectation, teaching practice and standards would
mean children experience the same ethos and programs of study throughout KS1 and 2.
« Staff would be able to transfer and teach across the curriculum stages and this would
enhance CPD as well as enabling the sharing of ‘best practice’ from both schools, (as an
example CLFS have just been awarded Flagship status for Inclusion). Also the potential
opportunity for succession planning would be improved.

8
16



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

» The evidence from schools in the borough that have previously amalgamated, has on the
whole impacted positively on the teaching and learning in those schools, improving
outcomes for children.

» We believe that a strong school with excellent strategic leadership is in the best interests
of the community it serves and we are committed to meeting the needs of our children
and exploiting their full potential.

Officer comment. The reasons given by the Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) Governing
Body for recommending amalgamation are in line with the educational rationale contained in the
Council’s Amalgamation Policy and are supported.

3. Governing Body of Cannon Lane Junior School

Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body recommends that the schools stay separate. The
Governing Body sets out its representations under four headings and attaches the detailed
response it made to the statutory consultation. Officer comment is made to the
representations below using the headings in the representations. The Governing Body’s
consultation response is then summarised and officer comment is made using the headings in
the Governing Body’s response letter.

Officer comment to the representations.

Procedure. When applying the Council’'s Amalgamation Policy the intention is that the
processes are transparent and every effort is made to ensure this is so. The full version of the
Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body recommendation and consultation response
document was provided to the Portfolio Holder for the decision about whether to publish
statutory proposals. The Governing Bodies’ recommendations and representations are
included in full in this report for the key decision that Cabinet will make and these Cabinet
papers are public.

The statutory proposals are completed using the Department for Education templates as set
out in regulations and provide information as specified. Practice in Harrow has been to provide
information in statutory proposals in the manner completed in the templates for the Cannon
Lane schools. The section in the template about evidence of consultation specifies public
consultation meetings and views of persons consulted and this is the focus of the information
that is provided in the documentation.

Governing Body. The views of governing bodies are requested whenever the Council’s
Amalgamation Policy is applied. This reflects the importance given to the views of governing
bodies and the value given to the contribution governors make to the high standards in Harrow
schools.

Impact of children. The implications of the Government’s new funding formula, resulting in
the loss of a lump sum of £142,230 in financial year 2014/15 and annually thereafter if the
position remains unchanged, was fully recognised in the consultation documentation and
discussed at open meetings. Further comment is given below under ‘Financial implications’.
School Size. The consultation and statutory proposals stated that any additional pupils
admitted under the Primary School Expansion Programme would be decided separately from
these proposals. Information was provided about the increased demand and the need to
increase the permanent provision in the area, supplemented by temporary additional
Reception classes. The statutory proposals stated that other schools in the North West and
South West Primary Planning Areas are being considered for permanent expansion, and there
are no current proposals to expand the Cannon Lane schools.

On 1 March 2013, as the statutory proposals were about to be published, the Government
launched the Targeted Basic Need Programme and invited applications from local authorities
for this additional funding of nearly £1billion over the next two years. A letter was sent to all
schools in Harrow and this was followed up by letters to specific schools that fit the criteria for
the applications which includes the Cannon Lane schools. The Government requires
applications to be submitted to a very tight timescale by 30 April 2013. The Government

9
17



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

criteria for this fund includes schools judged as Good or Outstanding, that are oversubscribed
and are in areas of high demand. The Cannon Lane schools fit this criteria and, given the
increasing local demand for places and the need to secure capital funding to provide the
necessary high quality additional school places that will be required, this is considered to be a
one-off opportunity that schools and the local authority cannot afford to miss in the interests of
the children in the borough. At this stage there is no formal agreement to taking forward
permanent expansion, and all due statutory processes of consultation and publication of
proposals would be followed before decisions would be made about whether or not expansion
should occur.

Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body response to the statutory consultation
The governing body believes there are compelling and over-riding educational reasons for the
schools to remain separate. The reasoning of the governors is set out under 10 headings and
details their considerations. Much of their case points out the high quality of the attainments of
the children and the provision at the Junior School and their concerns about these being
jeopardised in the medium and potentially long-term as a result of amalgamation. Key points
of their concerns include:
» The size of a combined school including the impact on personal relationships with the
headteacher and loss of ‘community feel’ of het schools;
* retaining the £142k lump sum means more money is available to meet the needs of the
children;
» risk that staff would leave (Junior School staff do not wish the schools to combine);
» turbulence generated by amalgamation could impact upon attainment and achievement
at the school in the short / medium / long term;
* the Headteacher would become a more remote leader. No reason to change a very
successful leadership structure;
» transition arrangements for pupils are highly successful,
» whole school assemblies are a criterial element of the ethos and success of the Junior
School;
* no funding allocated for building alterations;
e Junior School pupils wish the schools to remain separate;
» while recognising the Council’s amalgamation policy, the changing educational
landscape means the GB should be given the opportunity to make the decision about
how the school is taken forward.

Officer comment on the Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body response to the
consultation

Officer comment is given below using the headings in the Governing Body response letter. It is
judged that the issues raised would be addressed in the implementation action plan if the
schools combine.

Size of the school

Combining two existing schools does not change the numbers of pupils and physical size of the
school. Age appropriate curriculum and other arrangements would continue. Changes in
staffing structures and management arrangements would occur over time and there would be
sensitivity about the quality of relationships between the headteacher, staff, pupils and parents.

Financial implications

The implications of the Government’s new funding formula, resulting in the loss of a lump sum
of £142,230 in financial year 2014/15 and annually thereafter if the position remains unchanged,
was fully recognised in the consultation documentation and discussed at open meetings.

10
18



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Governing bodies are used to planning strategically and cost effectively within funding
envelopes and efficiencies may be achieved across a combined school. If the schools
amalgamate in September 2013 there would be time to plan and there would be no claw back of
any element of the lump sum during this financial year. There has been a Department for
Education (DfE) consultation with regards to the lump sum and school amalgamations and the
government is currently reviewing this with regards to any changes in the 2014/15 school
funding. The outcome from this consultation will be known later in the year.

Staffing

The Junior School Governing Body rightly recognises the commitment and expertise of the
current staff and the positive outcomes achieved for the children. Combining two schools does
not jeopardise this and a combined school will want to maintain and build on successful
outcomes for the children. While it is recognised that change can bring uncertainties for staff
and that some staffing restructure is likely for the running of the combined school, there is also
the potential for enhanced opportunities for staff experience and development that may assist
staff retention and recruitment. Any staff restructuring would be planned across the combined
school and would be implemented in accordance with the Council’s Protocol for Managing
Organisational Change.

Attainment

The Proposal Evaluation document published for the consultation stated that the educational
rationale set out in support of the amalgamation policy does not imply any criticism of the
current arrangements at the two Cannon Lane schools. The intention would be to build on the
many positives already in place at the schools and the organisational arrangements of a
combined school would be planned in order to achieve this.

Leadership
It is acknowledged that leadership arrangements would change because there would be one
headteacher for the combined school. However, appropriate management and communication
structures in a combined school can help to ensure that effective leadership and relationships
are in place.

Transition

The Proposal Evaluation document published for the consultation stated that the educational
rationale set out in support of the amalgamation policy does not imply any criticism of the
current arrangements at the two Cannon Lane schools. However good the transition
arrangements between schools, amalgamation removes this issue.

Premises

Harrow Council is committed to supporting schools that amalgamate, as evidenced by capital
works where appropriate to facilitate functioning as a combined school. The priority for schools
capital spend has to be ensuring there are sufficient places for children in Harrow’s schools,
though every effort will be made to support essential premises development that may be
identified. Cuts in public finances and delays in government announcements of schools capital
funding has not been helpful for budget planning.

Opportunities for children

The Proposal Evaluation document published for the consultation stated that the educational
rationale set out in support of the amalgamation policy does not imply any criticism of the
current arrangements at the two Cannon Lane schools. An amalgamated school offers more
opportunities for children across the artificial barrier of two separate schools.

11
19



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Consultation responses
Summary information about the consultation responses is set out above for Cabinet to consider
along with themes identified by Joint Steering Group members.

Current Educational Landscape

The Junior School Governing Body acknowledges that the Council’s amalgamation policy has
been followed. The Government reforms that are changing the educational landscape are
recognised and are being considered by the local authority in discussion with schools. The
governing body of a combined school would be able to consider the future direction of the
school in the light of these changes more effectively than the governing bodies of two separate
schools on the same site.

Summary outcome of the statutory consultation

The statutory consultation was held from Monday 14 January 2013 until Friday 8 February
2013. On 14 January 2013, Harrow Council sent the consultation paper to interested parties in
accordance with the Department for Education School Organisation and Competitions Unit
guidance. Information about the amalgamation policy, the consultation paper and proposal
evaluation were also made available on the Harrow Council website. The two schools
distributed the consultation paper and response form to all parents, members of staff and
governors. Three open consultation meetings for parents, staff and governors of both schools
were held, one on 21 January and two on 29 January 2013, to enable discussion.

Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) received 52 written responses to the consultation from
parents and staff and other interested stakeholders:

| support | want the schools to
: | am not sure Total
amalgamation stay separate
First School parent 19 3 1 23
Junior School parent 4 0 0 4
Parent in both
schools 17 1 0 18
Member of staff in
First School 6 1 0 [
Member of staff in
Junior School 0 0 0 0
Other interested
stakeholder: 0 0 0 0
Total 46 5 1 52
% 88.5% 9.6% 1.9% 100%
12

20



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Cannon Lane Junior School received 101 written responses to the consultation from parents and
staff:

| support | want the schools to
. | am not sure Total
amalgamation stay separate
First School parent 3 1 2 6
Junior School parent 31 17 4 52
Parent in both
schools 18 4 0 22
Member of staff in
First School 2 0 0 2
Member of staff in
Junior School 1 15 2 18
Other interested
stakeholder: 0 1 0 1
Total 55 38 8 101
% 54.5% 37.6% 7.9% 100%
Cannon Lane Junior School received 335 written responses to the consultation from pupils:
. . | support | want the schools to
Junior School Pupils amalgamation stay separate I am not sure Total
Total 137 171 27 335
% 40.9% 51.0% 8.1% 100%

All the completed response forms received from adult respondents were considered by Joint
Steering Group members, and key themes were identified by the group to assist the Governing
Bodies with their considerations. These themes are listed below in relation to the three
consultation questions.

| support combining the two schools

» Personalities — confidence in the First School Headteacher to lead a combined school
e Transitions and continuity

» Consistency across one school

* One strategy and communication across the primary phase

| want the schools to stay separate

» Size of the school would be too big

* Impact on staff, including non-teaching staff

» Separate schools work well and provide good services — why change?
* Financial concern at loss of £142k lump sum

| am not sure

» Concern at the size of the school — too big

» Concern about staff structure and Teaching and Learning Responsibility posts
e Concern at the loss of personal touch with the children

* More confused following the open meeting

13
21



Cannon Lane schools Cabinet report Appendix A.

Comments on the completed responses forms from Junior School pupils were considered by
the joint Steering Group but did not lend themselves to being themed. No completed response
forms were received from First School pupils.

The comments included in the consultation responses were collated and made available to the
governing bodies to consider when making their recommendations. These comments and
issues can also be considered by governors, as may be relevant, to inform subsequent future
planning.

Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) Governing Body met on 13 February 2013, and
recommended that both schools should merge.

Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body met on 14 February 2013 and recommended that
the schools stay separate.

Harrow Council received one response to the consultation which was from Harrow Association
of Disabled people. The response states that as the schools are on the same site, it seems
unlikely that there will be repercussions for disabled children, and the only concern would be if
the impact would be negative in any way on this group. However, as it is not suggested that
travel and admission arrangements would change, there shouldn’t be an issue. Harrow
Association of Disabled people would like to think that the effects would be positive if the
funding available can be used to increase accessibility in the school.

14
22



Cannon Lane First Schoaol

The Governors of Cannon Lane First School

Cannonbury Avenue
Pinner

Middlesex

HAS5 1TS

17" February 2013

Ms Catherine Doran,

Corporate Director, Children and Families,
London Borough of Harrow,

PO Box 57

Station Road

Harrow HA1 2UJ

Dear Ms Doran,
Re: Cannon Lane First School (4-7) : Governing Body Decision — Amalgamation

Following the recent consultation with the parents, pupils, staff and other stakeholders the governing body has now reviewed
the feedback received, at our meeting on the 13" February 2013, having discussed the feedback and the implications for the
children and staff as well as the potential impact on teaching and learning the governing body decided in a unanimous vote that
it was in the best interests of the children that both schools should amalgamate. Therefore it is the recommendation of the First
School governing body that both schools should merge.

We have considered the evidence and we feel that amalgamation would produce an enhanced learning environment for all
children in both schools based on the following reasons:

e Transition between Years 2/3 (KS1/2) would be less stressful for children as they would no longer have to adapt to a
‘different’ school, causing less disruption and anxiety.

e Consistency in terms of leadership, expectation, teaching practice and standards would mean children experience the
same ethos and programs of study throughout KS1 and 2.

e Staff would be able to transfer and teach across the curriculum stages and this would enhance CPD as well as enabling
the sharing of ‘best practice’ from both schools, (as an example CLFS have just been awarded Flagship status for
Inclusion). Also the potential opportunity for succession planning would be improved.

e The evidence from schools in the borough that have previously amalgamated, has on the whole impacted positively on
the teaching and learning in those schools, improving outcomes for children.

e We believe that a strong school with excellent strategic leadership is in the best interests of the community it serves
and we are committed to meeting the needs of our children and exploiting their full potential.

The governors would like me to express their request for a speedy decision as we feel this will give us time to plan and therefore
be in the best interests of the children in both schools.

We look forward to hearing from you shortly with a decision regarding amalgamation and the future of our school.
Kind regards

Kar en

Karen Scott Gallagher
Chair of Governors
Cannon Lane First School (4-7)

23



This page is intentionally left blank

24



The Governors of Cannon Lane Junior School

Cannon Lane Junior School,
Cannonbury Avenue,
Pinner,

Middlesex HAS 1TS

Tel 020 8868 7809

Chair: Mrs Teresa Jones
Vice Chair. Clir Kam Chana

16" April 2013

Mr Adrian Parker

Head of Education Strategy and School Orgamsation
Harrow Teacher's Centre

Tudor Road

Wealdstone

Harrow

Middlesex

HA3 SPQ

Dear Adrian

Statutory Proposals to combine
Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior School

Please find attached our representations in respect of the above proposal for
reporting to the Cabinet meeting on 8" May 2013

Yours sincerely

B

Teresa Jones
Chair of Governors
Cannon Lane Junior School

I e e —
L] |



REPRESENTATIONS FROM THE GOVERNING BDDY OF CANNON LANE JUNIOR
SCHOOL IN RELATION TO THE STATUTORY PROPOSALS TO COMBINE CANNON LANE
FIRST SCHOOL (4-7 YEARS) AND CANNON LANE JUNIOR SCHOOL

The following information is submitted by the Governing Body of Cannon Lane Junior School
following the publication of the Statutory Propeosal on 77 March 2013,

Procedure

The Governing Body of Cannon Lane Junior School wishes to record our concern that the
information submitted by the Governing Body in response to the consultation has been totally
excluded from the published information and do not view this as a transparent process. The
response document (copy attached) has not beer published as an integral part of this process
to enable all interested parties to have a comprehensive understanding of the context of the
proposals on our school The information submitted by the governing body was based on
extensive knowledge and expenence of the impact the proposals would have on our school and
as all other respanse information has been included we feel that this questions the objectivity of
the whole process

The governing body has fully co-cperated with LA Officers during the process and have adhered
ta the requirement in the Amaigamation Policy 2008 Annex A Communication We have nat
communicated our view during the Consultation pencd as recommended in the Palicy but are
now penalised as our view 1s not to be included i the published response that 15 included in the
Statutory Propesals for interested partes e g parents and staff.

Governing Body

The Cannon Lane Junior School Governing Body is constituted with representatives from the
different groups within our school community including parents and staff The parents and staff
are elected through a democratc process. We are unclear why the view of the governming body,
wha are respansible for leading and managing the schog! in conunction with the Headteacher
and who have the in depth knowledge. & not considered. The elected representatives were
chosen by a far greater number of parents than responded to the Consultation yet it seems that
this is not a consideration in the published prepesals The gaverning body have ensured that
our children receive the best possible Educatian and sur scheal is consistently one of the tep
performing schools in Harrow which we do not want to compromise.

Councillors have previously statad that they value the contribution governcrs maksa to the high
standards in Harrow Schocis but the Amalgamation Policy does not support the view as there
appears to be no recognition of the individual schoel context and knowledge.

We are aware that the ather Junior School in Harrow facing the same circumstances also does
not wish to amalgamate and therefore it would seem governors do not want to be forced to
follow a route that they do not believe to be in the best interest of the children The policy may
have been seen as appropriate in 2008 but in 2013 a lot has changed

26



Impact on children

The children are the reason why we are governors and we want the very best for them as
demonstrated in our Consultation response document We are tharefore very concerned that by
following the Amalgamation Policy the Council wil be choesing to allow the remaval of £154,000
per annum from the funding for the combined school This is due to the new school funding
formula that has beer implanted by the Government and 15 ongaing for every year This is an
ncrease on the amount that was advised when the Consultation process was undertaken and
will therefore have a greater impact. This budget cut of such a significant amount of money is a
vary compelling reason nol to proceed with the proposed amalgamation

Whilst we recognise that there would be some savings from a combined school, the savings will
not be at the level of the budget cut. This budget reduction will have serous implication on the
quality of Education that can be provided to the children and potentially could result in cuts to
staffing which would have most impact on the more vulnerable children who need extra support.
Our concern is that the level of funding would reman avalable for the Cannon Lane children by
staying as 2 separate schools as each schoel would retain its full funding entittement and why
would the Council choose to disadvantage the children when there is no financial benefit to the
Council. It 15 extremely important to retan as much funding as pessible within the School
Budget in order te face the unclear financial future.

School Size

Al all stages of the Consuitation and also in the Statutory Proposals it has been stated by the LA
Officers that the size of the combined school would remain the same size as the 2 separate
schools and this information was provided to our school community. It is now of concern that the
schools have been contacted as the Council wishes to include us in a bid for permanent
expansion to four form entry. This will potentially lead to a combined school of 840 pupils which
we are opposed to and believe many parents would view the amalgamation very differently if
this information had been published as part of current Statutory Propesals and in the original
Consultation.

Conclusion

We do not consider that the Statutory Proposals are in the best interest of the children at
Cannon Lane Junigr School and hope that the ail of the information that we have submitted to
support this view will be fully considered The raticnzle inciuded in an outdated Policy need to
be considered in the cument changing Educational Landscape and Governing Bodies are very
well placed through their knowledge commitmant and experience to know what will be best for
their individual school. We are very concernad that the additicnal issue of scheol expansion is
now being progressed and guestion why this information was withheld in the onginal
Consultation.

Teresa Jones

Chair of Governors
Cannon Lane Junior School

27



(_Its where we shine )

Recommendation from the Governing Body
of Cannon Lane Junior School

February 2013

28



Backqround

GCannon Lane Junior School is a thriving 3 form entry school providing places for 360 pupils in
years 3- 6 aged 7-11. It is located in Pinner and shares a site with Cannon Lane First School
(4-7 years) and is situaied on the upper floor of the building. The schoaol is highly successful
and provides all of its pupils with an extenswve range of opportunities enabling them to become
independent and salt confident.

Our Vision

Our school is committed to excellence. It is a school where academic achievement is promoted
alongside the development of the whele personality. It is a school where all children's talents
are celebrated, including those from the broader curriculum of sgort, music and the arts.

We aim lo conlinuously develop the guality of teaching and learning, encouraging every child
lo improve and progress in a broad and balanced curriculum. We also strive to develop the
qualities of responsibility, sell-confidence and care for others.

Cannon Lane Junior School aims to..

Educate children in a happy, safe and caring enviranment,

Provide an active curriculum which includes National Curriculum objectives.
Develop the children's indepancence, contidence and sense of self worth.
Value every child equally whatever their abilty, ethnicity or background.
Encourage every child to reach his/har tull potential

Provide an eftective and flexible learning environmant in which children, staff,
governors and parents work together in partnership.

Develop values and allitudes in accordance with a pluralist society.
Develop sell-discipline and set boundaries of acceptable behaviour.
Encourage lolerance, respect and empathy with others.

Foster links with the local community and other schools.

Governing Body

The Governing Body has considered all of the information available and is making ils
recommendation following the Governing Body Meeting held on Thursday 14" February 2013
which was attended by all governors. The decision is based on what we consider best meels
the needs of the currant and future children using the experience and knowledge thal we have
of our Schoel, gained aver a peried of tme. Qur decision is based on educational rationale
tocusing on the boundaries set n the Consubation exercise and with due recourse to the
responses submitted from both First and Junior schools. The iollowing issues were
considered:-

1. Size of the Schogl &, Transition

2 Financial Implications 7. Premises

3. Staffing 8.0Opportunities far children

4. Attainment 9.Consultation Responses
5.Leadership 10. Current Educational Landscape

29



1. Size of the School

The Junior School has 380 children (30 per class) over 4 year groups. We are therefore
classified by the Department of Education as a large school as is Cannon Lane First School (4-
7 years). There is concern from parents, pupils and statt af the impact on the children ot
potentially being in a school of almost 700 pupils. There is no evidence to support children's
educational experience being enhanced in such a large school. We believe thal the current
arrangements facilitate the personal relationship belween the Headteacher, staff and all of the
pupils and parents which would be lost due lo the scale of such a large school. It is evident,
from the consullation responses, that our parenls welcome the personal contacl with lhe
Headteacher which would not be possible in a larger school, Children are concerned aboul
such a wide age range of children being together with different needs when the Gurremt
provision is age speciic and prowides very positive results. There will be a loss of the
‘community teel’ of the schools 4 such a large single schaol structure is implemented

Under the arrangements that take ettect from Aprl 2013 a new tunding formula is being
inlroduced for schools. As a result all separate schools will receive within their budget
allocation a lump sum of £142,000 If schogls combine there will only ba an allocation of one
lump sum which will result in a reduction frem the total school budget of £142.,00 annually. This
reduction will have a direct impact on the guality ol provision for children from both schools as
it is highly likely that the savings that would have 1o be made would be from the stalling
budget, which is the largest element of the school budge!. This could resull in lesser provision
for those children with additional needs as Teaching Assistants may be reduced. Whilsl there
would be a saving of a Headteachers salary and some service agreement costs this will not
aquate to the budget reduction. Over a period of just a few years the Cannon Lane Schools
would lose over £1,000,000 which would make a significant difference to the quality of the
Education. We do not believe that this can be justified in the current financial cimate with
ongoing deflationary pressures and serious culs 'o budgets. The present and future predicted
environments demand that Governing Badies seek to ensure that we have the maximum
funding for the children, we believe this impacts all children in the schools. Whilst the First
School has previously managed a budget reduction this was accompanied by the reduction of
80 children and associated staff costs when an entire year 3 cohort was moved to the Junior
School. There will only be some cost reductions if an amalgamation takes place and so it is the
children who would suffer as a resull. Staving as separaie schools means more money is
available to meel the needs of all of our children,

This cut, it the schools were 1o amalgamate, eguates to 10% of the current Junior School
budget. A number of parents and staff voiced concern at such a significant budgetary cut in the
public meetings and unfortunately there was no hard data presented which detailed how such
cuts could be mitigated whilst preserving the present quality of education,

3.Staffing

The current staffing arrangements in the Junior Schoo! provide the children with experienced,
committed teaching and non teaching staff who have excallent knowledge of the Key Stage 2
curriculum, They are led by a Senior Management Team with in depth knowledge and
experience of the National Curriculum apprepriate for the age of the children. The staff are
responsible tor the everyday experiences for the children and it is due to their commitment that

30



we have such positive outcomes for the children. The staff have the underslanding and
expertise of what best meets the neads of the children in their classes and the overwhelming
view expressed at the Consultation Meatings and in the responses to the Consullation is thal
the Junior School staff do not wish the schools fa combine. The staff are doing an excellent job
so there is no reason to change somathing that is working so well for the benefit of the
children. As one parent veiced, “If it ain't broke, why fix it” — the concarn being that alternative
armangements 10 amalgamation are possible which would preserve the high quality education
and the finances required to maintain it

The Junior School slalf have been trained and chosen to teach the 7-11 age range so there is
a risk that we would lose stafl, which again would allect the guality of Education provided to
the children. We have experienced no difficulty in attracting high quality staff to our school and
retaining them. Our stafl have access o a full range of Continued Professional Development
otfered through HSIP and therefore gain knowledge of the whole primary phase. As part of the
Family of Schools project we link with a group of similar schools wilhin Harrow therelore
enabling our staff to benefit from this excellent development opportunily.

4.Atlalnment

Cannon Lane Junior Schoaol is a high achieving school as evidenced in the attached Key Stage
2 results table {appendix 1). The children consistantly achieve well above the National Average
and are consistently amongst the top performing schools in Harrow. The Key Stage 2 results
also show thal we are often the top performing 3 form entry schaaol in Harrow,

Qur children make good progress throughout the Schoal as evidenced by the tracking data
and therelore there is no evidence 1o support the view in the Consultation Documant that
‘Where primary education is provided in separale key stages, there is generally very little
effective curriculum continuity and progression. In such situations the scope for discontinuity is
increased’

The Curriculum provided at Cannon Lane Junior Schoel was judged as ' Qutstanding ' in the
last OFSTED inspection.

Evidence from the Harrow key stage 2 resulis and from the neighbouring London Borough of
Hillingdon indicate that separate Junior Schools do have excellent levels of allainmenl. The
Governars do not feel that a coherent set of evidential data or arguments were presented with
respect to present attainment data of the Junior Schoel. Indeed, it was often recognised thal
the Junior School data is exemplary and the schools results are popular with both parents and
our 'link’ high schools. Atter consideration of evidence fram other local and national school
amalgamations Governors ware concemed that the short term turbulence generated by
amalgamation could have serious medium and potentally long-tarm impact upon attainment
.and achievement at the schogl e.g. though loss of staff, support arrangements, staffing
slructures, experiise, specialism's and the like.

5. Leadership

The current Leadership model at Cannon Lane has worked extremely well with benefits for
pupils, parents and staff. The Governing Body works with the Senior Managemenlt Team lo
ensure that the needs of all pupils are met, This is achievable with 360 pupils and a leam
dedicated to this number of pupils. It 15 a concern that the effectiveness of this model will be

31



diluted and the Headteacher become a more remote Leader if the number of pupils is
increased to nearly 700,

It is clear that based on our expenance the outcomes for children have been very positive and
we can see no reason to change a very successful Leadership structure.

Al Cannon Lane Junior School we believe that our transition arrangements for pupils are highly
successful. The feedback from the parental survey in 2012 ( appendix 2) records a 93%
salislaction rale. This is also supported by the teedback from the staft and pupils. We continue
o review the arrangements 1o ensure thal the needs of all children are mel. We believe that
after making the successiul lransition 1o Year 3 this provides the children with the conlidence
to move to High School at the end of Year 6. The leedback from High Schools and parenls is
that our former pupils find transition an easy process.

Once children move to the Jurmior School they adapt quickly ta the key slage 2 curriculum and
the data shows they make good progress. The continuity is ensured through dialogue between
the staft of both schools Whilst we do not have a high number of children with Statements of
Special Educational Needs, we ensure thal those children with special educational needs
have their needs met and this has not been an issue at Cannon Lane Junior Schoal. The
personal development and well-baing of our pupils and the pastoral care of pupils was judged
as 'Outstanding’ in the last OFSTED Report.

We do not have any evidence thal by making one change at age 7 that the transition fo
Cannon Lane Junior School has any negative impact on the children and cannot see why this
syslem that has worked successiully over a number of years should be cited; it is our opinion
thal this slatement is unsubstantiated.

7.Premises
The two schools share one sile but are based on separate lloors of the building. Due lo the

design of the premises there is no epportunity for mere than the current number of pupils to
join together for e.g. assemblies. The Junior School values the lime that the whole school
meets together as it promotes the sense of belonging and being pant of the School. Whole
school assemblies are a substantial feature of all schacls and certainly they are a criterial
element of the ethos and success of the Junior School as was often expressed by students,
parents and staff of the Junior School. Despite queries and concerns raised at the public
meetings there is currently no funding allccatad to make changes to the building and it is a
concern that as the school would continue to operate on the two separate floors that there is
no reason not to continue with the current praven arrangaments with the celebrated success
achieved by the each of the schoals..

The physical separation would also be evident as there is limited space for a |larger staff room
and again no funding has been allocatad.

There Is no funding currenily allocated to the schools for building alterations and therefore as a
combined school would have a reduced budget there would not be finances available to make
any changes and in addilion a significant 10% annual loss in income.

ies for children

The Junior School is commitied 1o promoting the development of the whole child and therefore
offers a wide range of opportunities. There is a prefect system, buddy scheme and Sports

32



Leaders all of which enable the older pupils to experience the responsibility for the younger
children and to provide aspirational role models and mentoring supporl. We have a very
effective School Council providing valuable feedback on matters across the whole school. The
music provision and other extra curricula activities provided ensure that the children already
have access to the full range of opportunities. Governors have carefully considered the
opinions expressed by the Junior School children in their consultation respanses, especially
older children at the school, wha have experienced both schools.

¥ | n n

The governing body has read the comments provided by the respandents 1o the Consullation
and have the following observations. The response rale fram parents across the two schools is
approximately 15%. Chris Melly noted thal this was a higher than usual level of engagement.
The response rale from the Junior School staff and Junior School children is significantly
higher. The slafl and children wish 1o remain as separale schools. In the breakdown ol the
children's responses it was noted that the Year 6 children, who have the benefit of
experiencing both schools for the longest period of time expressed significant preference 1o
remain as separate schools.

It was also noted in the comments on a significant number of parental responses that the focus
had been on personalities rather than on the issue of whether the two schools shauld combine.,
The clear tocus of the Consultation was on whether the schools should combine or remain
separate and whilst the responses have produced a range of information it has bean the role ot
the governing body to focus on the subject of the Consultation and hence our
recommaeandations are denved from the response fo this exercise.

10. Current Educallonal Landscape
It has been recognised by the Governing Body that the Harrow Council Amalgamation Policy

was issued in 2008 when there was a very different Education Landscage in Harrow and
nationally. We are aware that the Policy was under review from the draft document provided lo
us dated Oclober 2012 but nevertheless we recognise the 2008 Policy is still in place and this
has been followed. We are concemed that as the changes and reforms being introduced
nationally are implemented the role of the Local Authority has changed and this was detailed at
the recenl Harrow Conference’ Shaping the Future Direction for Harrow Primary Schools' on
1% February 2013. . We feel it is essential that Gannon Lane Junior School Governing Body is
given the oppartunity to make the decision as to haw they embrace the changes and take
forward the School to meet the challanges aheaa.

After considering all of the intformation. and based on cur knowledge and experience of our
school, we recommend that the schools stay separate. We hope you will value the views of the
governors in reaching this decision, tully congider all of the reasons outlined in this document
and allow ug to continue o provide the high guality education the children deserve, We are
very seriously concerned about the major impact of the funding reduction and believe thal this
will have a considerable detrimenial effect on the children. This combined with all of the issues
included above lead us o believe thal there are compeliing and over-riding educational
reasons for the Schools lo remain separate. Cannon Lane Junior School is providing an

33



excellent education for all of its pupils and by remaining separate will continue to do sa for the
children in the future.

The Governing Body's considered view, in light of the Consultation and its responses, our
knowledge of the impac! of the amalgamation (both known and unknown e.g. financial and
statfing) and the exemplary attanment data and evidence derived from our many years of
experience of the Junior Schoo! has led us to the conclusion that we do nol wish 1o

amalgamate.

Appendices :
1. Cannon Lane Junior Schoo! Key Stage 2 Results tabla
2. Cannon Lane Junior Schoo! Parental Questionnaire 201112

34



Appendix 1
KS2 SATS RESULTS 2009 - 2012

LEVEL4 LEVEL5 Level6
% % %
2009 i
English |94 a8 N
Maths 92 |50
Science |98 | 74
2010 4
English |93 54
Maths 93 62
Science | 97 72
2011 {
English 92 41
Maths l 89 58
Science | 91 a1
P |
2012 [
English |94 57
Maths 90 56 22
Science |97 64

35




Appendix 2

CANNON LANE JUNIOR SCHOOL
CONFIDENTIAL QUESTIONNAIRE FOR PARENTS
2011-12
Please take the trouble to fill in this questionnaire. Your answers will help the children, stalf
and governors create a better school. Please indicate your level of satisfaction with the
following aspects of learming and school life by ticking the appropriate boxes. Please add any
additional comments overleaf.  Only complete one questionnaire.

TO BE RETURNED TO SCHOOL BY THURSDAY 227° MARCH. THANK YOL).

We/ | have children in the following year group(s).

Year 3 Yeard Year S Year 6
| 30% | 28% | 20% | 2%
Aoty of e g & Sohool Line Vory Saighed | Sarrteoo Mot Very ~ Mt oran Linsurs of
Satshion Sansfiae LRk o
The ovetall sducation proves | Em 45%; 1% 0% "’é‘%""
fear the chilldren i
Holping ikl o Wik loaring 14% 33% 0% 0% 52%
hﬁ:-lﬁl upporuniies Ior boys & 48% 44°; 0% 0% 8%
aitls
Caul apparundios forchidron 49% 45% 29, 0% 4%
Bupil Dehaion 38% 59% 0% 1% 2%
Th i ; 1 &
cotbemosyoiam e | WS ) e ™ | . |
Biecipiine procadures 42% 46% 4% 1% 7%
Cpporluniliey 1o dizeuss your 42% 55% 2% 1% 0%
clild = progress
Out of school hours clubs 34% 43% 7% 2% 14%
Infarmatan provided about (e 32% 62% 5% 1% 0%
CUITiCLi _
SR _ ] 6% 1 SN 1 W% 0% 0%
TranzHin s fham the:
FL:T& h':ml arrm?arm; fig: 45%, 489 2% 1% 4%
Home | Sohocl iw Book 41% 559% 4% 0% 0%
The schiool weosite 36% 54°%; e 1% 0%
Franter information 30% 52%; 5% 2%, 2%
The Tellulness of stall 589, 39°, 2% 0% 1%
| Coportunifias @ Relp in achool 34% 39% 7% 1% 24%,
The exient 1 which e schonl 2Q9;, 0% 1% 2% 8%
lighors o parehis’ views
Plaage ring one of the apfions helow
[ Homework - amount | Too mugh 10% | Too lntle 13% | Aboutright 77% |

36



| _ é@%{%,&?_ﬁ!j
/ vl (2ol (7l Fiive atit, bt -
: (z@-p 2 %ﬁ-&é ;zﬂld’wwﬁf o Wc’éﬁf
: Z;,%mf Lghoot e ;@77(),,2/&{,@;&4@;

m/ﬁw o piloract LE4H G2k AKoy
Gl apd Have cre cveellirit oAl & oo

otcalborn /1 @ Ll {é‘a‘#ﬂﬂ—7 Lot tocrsinril.
-%ﬁ ﬁw Aol AL 2 Mf*’{f@‘(f{

Lisiliing e cledrons (rfedioncie inltomeobin

i o o e ST
by S L Gt oV 2
,é{fi Z%/% sz /z/;zm,ﬁ’”’%”{
bkt p.

37



o Lot 2olol Lo Hov curre litonditicn bl .
el 4 Z. Tty e Cmbureet
@ Lage dekat, Fylont e o
ﬂi (lelbtror WA"%"‘? (e Pmgallr cori
& b @les @ (optcer 7T . ot
fz/gjwﬁw/@/ﬁﬂ? .
7 it 2 St G
ble ft gear & EE G
AL 4 &Zj‘é?ﬂﬁfﬁg%wcﬁfﬁ/ﬁ
. Ko Zire 74 Yo Mf"’f Sorentls
Y:é/ﬁy & %V/MW W/mm
S cloats (e @Mﬂ@mm

» %ﬁé@ Mlﬁfmfé@wﬁzﬂa
Alale Llell %WfM@Mé’m

7%7%' 38



Agenda Iltem 4
Pages 39 to 86

CABINET
Date of Meeting: 28 May 2013
Subject: Special Needs Transport Change

Programme 3 (SNT3) — Referral by Call-In
Sub-Committee

Key Decision: Yes (this is a reconsideration of the Key
Decision made by Cabinet on 11 April 2013)

Responsible Officer: Hugh Peart, Director of Legal and
Governance Services

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Zarina Khalid, Portfolio Holder for
Children, Schools and Families

Councillor Thaya ldaikkadar, Leader of the
Council and Portfolio Holder for Property and
Major Contracts

Councillor Krishna James, Portfolio Holder
for Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing

Exempt: No

Decision subject to No/Yes (please see end of report)
Call-in:

Enclosures: Appendix 1 — Call-In Notice by Members of
the Public
Appendix 2 — Minutes of the Call-In Sub
Committee — 29 April 2013
Appendix 3 — Extract of Cabinet Minutes - 11
April 2013
Appendix 4 — Cabinet Report on the Special
Needs Transport Change Programme 3
(SNT3) + EqlAs
Appendix 5 — Submission from Corporate
Director of Children and Families

LONDON

(Harroatouncr)
2 rVOWCOUNCIL



Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report sets out the decision of the Call-In Sub-Committee held on 29 April
2013 following the receipt and consideration of a Call-In notice in relation to
Cabinet’s decision of 11 April 2013 on the Special Needs Transport Change
Programme 3 (SNT 3).

Recommendations: That

(1) in accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 46.8.3, the
decision of Cabinet on 11 April 2013, as set out in Appendix 3, in
relation to the Special Needs Transport Change Programme 3 be
re-considered as result of the decision of the Call-In Sub-
Committee;

(2) the original Cabinet decision of 11 April 2013 be confirmed or
amended in light of the Call-In Sub-Committee’s comments and
having considered the submission and additional
recommendation proposed by the Corporate Director of Children
and Families at appendix 5.

(3) Cabinet be asked to consider requesting a report that outlines the
process of drawing up and approving Equality Impact
Assessments (EqlAs) for Cabinet level decisions.

Reason (For recommendation): In accordance with Committee Procedure
Rule 46.8.3, Cabinet must reconsider its decision within 10 clear working days
of a referral by the Call-In Sub-Committee.

Section 2 - Report

On 11 April 2013, Cabinet agreed that the progress on the SNT3 programme
be noted, that a further progress report with a final draft policy be received for
approval in Autumn 2013 and gave delegated authority for the Corporate
Director Children and Families, in consultation with the Portfolio Holders for
Children, Schools and Families, Property and Major Contracts, and Adult
Social Care, Health and Wellbeing, to procure, select and award contracts to
the preferred transport services suppliers on such terms as agreed, acting in
the best interests of the Council and in doing so promoting local social
enterprises and private organisations and to consult on a new transport
eligibility policy. The report considered by Cabinet is attached at Appendix 4.

C:\model 40 1\AgendaltemDocs\0\3\6\Al00082630\$1voaw2ci.doc




On 19 April 2013, a Call-In Notice signed by over 150 members of the public
was received citing the grounds of inadequate consultation with stakeholders
prior to the decision, the absence of adequate evidence on which to base the
decision and insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. The Call-
In Notice is attached at Appendix 1. Having been validated, a meeting of the
Call-In Sub-Committee was held on 29 April 2013 to consider the Call-In
notice. The subsequent reference arising from the Sub-Committee meeting is
attached at Appendix 2 for Cabinet Members consideration.

The Sub-Committee agreed, unanimously, that the call-in on ground (a) —
inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision - be upheld
and referred back to Cabinet for re-consideration. The Members felt that the
consultation was limited and the trades’ unions had not been engaged
properly. The Sub-Committee requested that the previously agreed cross
party practice of early trade union engagement was followed. The Sub-
Committee also expressed the view that it was best practice to engage with
service users where there was a major change to the way a service was
delivered.

The Sub-Committee agreed, by majority, that the call-in on the grounds of the
absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision not be upheld due
to insufficient grounds. The Sub-Committee unanimously agreed Cabinet be
asked to consider requesting a report that outlined the process of drawing up
and approving Equality Impact Assessments (EqlAs) for Cabinet level
decisions.

The Sub-Committee agreed, unanimously, that the call-in on the grounds of
insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice not be upheld due to
insufficient grounds.

In accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 46.8.3, Cabinet must
reconsider its original decision within 10 clear working days of a referral by the

Call-In Sub-Committee. Cabinet are requested to either confirm or amend
their decision of 9 February in relation to this matter.

Options considered

Cabinet are requested to either confirm or amend their decision 11 April 2013
having considered the referral by the Call-In Sub-Committee.

Legal Implications

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013

Financial Implications

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013

Performance Issues

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013

C:\moder 41 \AgendaltemDocs\0\3\6\A100082630\$1voaw2ci.doc



Environmental Impact

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013
Risk Management Implications

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013
Equalities implications

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013

Corporate Priorities

As set out in the Cabinet report of 11 April 2013

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Steve Tingle Chief Financial Officer

Date: 1 May 2013

on behalf of the
Name: Sarah Wilson Monitoring Officer

Date: 1 May 2013

Section 4 - Performance Officer Clearance

Name: Alex Dewsnap Divisional Director
Strategic
Date: 2 May 2013 Commissioning

C:\modeil 42 1\AgendaltemDocs\0\3\6\Al100082630\$ 1voaw2ci.doc




Section 5 - Environmental Impact Officer
Clearance

Name: John Edwards Divisional Director
(Environmental
Date: 2 May 2013 Services)

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact:

Nicola Fletcher

Democratic and Electoral Services Officer
Tel: 020 8416 8050

Email: nicola.fletcher@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Minutes of the Call-In Sub-Committee — 29 April 2013

Call-In Waived by the NOT APPLICABLE
Chai fO i
airman ot Tverview Call-in does not apply if

and Sc_rutiny original decision of
Committee Cabinet on 11 April is
confirmed unchanged.

However, if original
decision is amended
Call-in will apply.

C:\moder 43 \AgendaltemDocs\0\3\6\Al00082630\$ 1voaw2ci.doc




This page is intentionally left blank

44



Print Form

CALL-IN NOTICE

To be completed by Members of the Public, as per the provisions of Committee Procedure
Rule 46.5.

To: The Director of Legal and Governance Services

1. Notice of Call-In of Executive Decision

In accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 46.5, we, the 150 signatories to this
call-in notice (see numbered continuation sheets overleaf), being members of the public
registered on the electoral roll of the London Borough of Harrow, hereby give notice that
we wish to call-in the Executive decision detailed in section 2 below.

2. Details of Executive Decision

The details of the Executive decision are as follows:-
I Special Needs Transport Change Programme 3 (SNT 3)
Decision:
Cabinet Thursday 11th April 2013
Made by:
(Cabinet/relevant Portfolio Holder)
. Friday 12th April 2013
Publishod on: ’asiiliassiisisnsssiesisissnssimmss
(Date)

3. Grounds for Call-In

(Please specify below the grounds for the call-in, in accordance with Committee
Procedure Rule 46.5. Please note that, in the event that this call-in is referred to the
Call-in Sub-Committee, the considerations of the Sub-Committee will focus on the
grounds stated, and the Sub-Committee will seek evidence to support them. Please
therefore also set out below details of the evidence to support the grounds for call-in,
continuing on a separate sheet if necessary).

1) Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision: No consultation tock place with trade
unions/staff prior to the decision to cutsource SNT even though UNISON had requested a halt

to proceedings on the 2nd April 2013 but did not receive a response before Cabinet agreed the project.

l /é!‘f'ﬂt'ACDUNCIL

LONDON

45



No evidence of consultation with all service users e.g. Children & Adults and any other departments.

T Il L T T R T T T T

2) The absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision: The accompanying EqiA dated 25th

T L T T T T R T T R T T T T T T T T T T T ey oY

February 2013 is inadequate, was not disclosed to any stakeholder other than senior internal staff and

L L L T e e T T Y

completely fails to recognise and pay "due regard” to all of the protected characteristic groups under the

T Pp— eI I T T T T T T T T T T S T T T T TTIT TITTITITITTITTIT T T CELEE L]

Equality Act 2010. It is not robust and did not follow normal EqlA processes prior to Cabinet submission.

AR R R EE NN SIS EE R R S S FrEEsEEEEETsEESEEEEETASSRAEETETAd AR RS R R Crrr e

3} Insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice: As above no "due regard” under the PSED.

aasEEE AR AR AR a R SRR N R R R R R B R R R R AR R AR E R R R RS SRR R SRR AR R R R e

Once completed, please forward this form to Nicola Fletcher, Legal &
Governance Services, Harrow Council, Room M22, Civic Centre,
HA1 2UH or send it by fax to 020 8424 1557 WITHIN 5 CLEAR
WORKING DAYS OF THE DATE OF PUBLICATION OF THE DECISION.

46



| —
UNISON

Harrvow .G,
Branch

Call-in Notice: ‘Grounds for Call-in’

Decision: Special Needs Transport Change Programme 3 (SNT 3)
Made by: Cabinet Thursday 11 April 2013

Published on: Friday 12 April 2013

(NB- Below are details in support of the Grounds for Call-in for signatories & the Director of
Legal and Governance, Harrow Council)

1. Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision:

No consultation took place with trade unions/staff prior to the decision to outsource SNT
even though UNISON had requested a hait to proceedings on the 2" April 2013 in a letter
written to the Leader of the Council which has not been responded to.

There is no evidence of adequate consultation methods used with staff/unions and service
users during the equality impact assessing stage demonstrated in the 'SNT 3 Programme’
Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA). This assessment was not widely circulated or shared
with any stake holding party prior to Cabinet decision.

No evidence has been provided to confirm that a consultation process had taken place with
all 515 children and adult service users and their families concerning the direction of overall
provision of the service, service standards, health & safety and on the proposals to change
and inevitably restrict service eligibility criteria for many users.

There is no evidence of consultation with other departments who use the in-house Special
Needs Transport Service such as the Community Health & Wellbeing department.

2. The absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision:

The accompanying EqIA dated 25" February 2013 is inadequate and fail's to compile robust
assessment findings as to the potential impact upon all individuals i.e. staff and users within
the Protected Characteristic Groups, failing to even assess or profile the impact on several
Protected Groups.

The EqlA was not tabled at the Children & Families Directorate Equalities Group nor was it
tabled and agreed at the Corporate Equalities Group, given its cross-directorate impact on
service users, before it was agreed by Cabinet.

3. Insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice:

The SNT 3 Report for Cabinet did not contain a specific Legal Impiications section for
Equalities ensuring that members have due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty
(PSED), under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, in the undertaking of decisions before
they are made ensuring that all of the protected characteristics are listed and taken into
account. It is clear the EqlA did not have sufficient 'due regard’ and that advice was not fully
included and considered by members.

2 (a)

47



This page is intentionally left blank

48



LONDON

__

40.

41.

CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE

29 APRIL 2013

Chairman: * Councillor Jerry Miles

Councillors: * Sue Anderson * Ajay Maru (2)
* Barry Macleod-Cullinane (1) * Paul Osborn

In Stephen Wright Minute 44

attendance:

(Councillors)

*  Denotes Member present

(1), (2) Denote category of Reserve Members
Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note the attendance of the following duly appointed Reserve
Members:

Ordinary Members Reserve Members
Councillor Ann Gate Councillor Ajay Maru
Councillor Susan Hall Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane

Declarations of Interest
RESOLVED: To note that the following interests were declared:

Agenda ltem 5 — Call-In of Cabinet Decision (11 April 2013) — Special Needs
Transport Change Programme 3 (SNT 3)

Councillor Sue Anderson declared a non pecuniary interest in the above item
in that she was a member of a different branch of Unison and as her husband

Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013 49 -44 -



42.

43.

44,

Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013 50 -45 -

was Chair of Governors at Kingsbury School. She would remain in the room
whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane declared a non pecuniary interest in the
above item in that his sister was a teacher at Hatch End High School. He
would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Councillor Ajay Maru declared a non pecuniary interest in the above item in
that his wife was a teaching assistant at Ambrose School. He would remain in
the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Councillor Jerry Miles declared a non pecuniary interest in the above item in
that he was a member of a different branch of Unison. He would remain in
the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Councillor Paul Osborn declared a non pecuniary interest in the above item in
that he was the Portfolio Holder who had signed the decision on Special
Needs Transport 1 (SNT1). He would leave the room if the Sub-Committee
discussed the SNT1 decision.

Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2013, be taken
as read and signed as a correct record.

Protocol for the Operation of the Call-In Sub-Committee

The Chairman outlined the procedure to be followed at the meeting and
advised the Sub-Committee that they would not be able to decide that the
decision was contrary to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in
accordance with the budget framework as the decision had not been called-in
on this ground.

RESOLVED: That the Call-In would be determined on the basis of the
following grounds:

a) inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision;
b) the absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision;
f) insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice.

RESOLVED ITEMS

Call-In of Cabinet Decision (11 April 2013) - Special Needs Transport
Change Programme 3 (SNT 3)

The Sub-Committee received papers in respect of a call-in notice submitted
by over 150 members of the public.



- 46 -

The Chairman invited the representative of the signatories, Mr Darren
Butterfield of Unison, to present the reasons for the call-in of the decision to
the Sub-Committee.

The representative of the signatories addressed each of the grounds for the
call-in separately.

Ground 1 — Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision

The representative of the signatories explained that at the Children and
Families Departmental Joint Committee (DJC) on 19 March 2013 the
information presented had been inadequate and had failed to include the
Cabinet report, the Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) and the full business
case. A letter had been sent by the Unison Branch Secretary to the Leader of
the Council requesting that the decision be suspended but a response had not
been received. Meetings with staff had taken place on 28 March 2013 and,
due to the timing of the sessions, many Special Needs Transport (SNT) staff
had been unable to attend. The consultation did not satisfy Section 15 of the
Recognition Agreement and consultation after the decision was not
meaningful. There had not been any consultation with the 515 service users
but there were potential impacts on users including health and safety
concerns and any future changes to the eligibility criteria. There did not
appear to have been any dialogue with officers in the Community, Health and
Wellbeing Directorate or with other Members about the Cabinet report and the
EqlA. Two versions of the EqlA were available on the Council’'s website, one
of which was unsigned and undated, while the other had been signed by the
Divisional Director Early Intervention Services. It was not clear whether a
recognised Council group, such as the Quality Assurance Board or the
Corporate Equality Group had met to consider the EqIA. There had not been
consultation with Head Teachers on the EqlA.

Ground 2 — The absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision

The representative of the signatories advised that the evidence provided was
inadequate to assess the impact of the proposals and the EqlA assumed no
impact on two of the protected characteristics, race and gender. The
proposals did not include information on what the new eligibility criteria would
be for the service.

Ground 3 — Insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice

The representative of the signatories made reference to the public sector
equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and commented that
full legal advice had not been given. He explained that if full advice had been
provided then the information lacking from the EqlA on race and gender would
have been identified.

The Chairman then invited the Portfolio Holder for Children, Schools and
Families to address the Sub-Committee. She thanked the representative of
the signatories for his presentation and introduced Councillor Phillips, her
Portfolio Holder Assistant who had been involved with SNT 3. The Portfolio

51 Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013



Holder for Children, Schools and Families requested officers to respond to the
detailed, operational points raised.

The Corporate Director, Children and Families and the Divisional Director,
Special Needs Services, made the following comments in response to the
presentation of the grounds of the call-in:

o there had been consultation with the trades’ unions and with staff prior to
the decision. At the Department Joint Committee (DJC) meeting on 19
March 2013, the unions had been in attendance and the proposals had
been explained in detail. Meetings with staff had been held on 28 March
2013 at two different times but it was noted that it had been difficult to
schedule a date for meetings with staff prior to the Easter holidays.
Approximately 40% of SNT staff had attended and additional sessions
would be held in different locations for the staff who had been unable to
attend. Written communications about the proposals would be sent;

e the principles of the project had been outlined as there were no specific
proposals to be explained during the pre-consultation;

e it had been felt to be unnecessary to engage with other stakeholders or
service users because currently 20% of the service was outsourced and
service users could be collected by either Council staff or an external
provider;

e there would be consultation with other stakeholders and service users if
there was a major change to the eligibility criteria. At present, it was
proposed to refresh the criteria and it was not expected that there would
be a significant change in eligibility. It was possible that one outcome of
the eligibility refresh would be an increase in independent travel training;

o there had been consultation on the eligibility policy when it was last agreed
in 2006 and the proposed refresh would address statutory changes;

e the EqlA would be revised throughout the three year programme and the
version submitted with the Cabinet report was an initial version. The EqlA
had been considered and developed by various Council officers meaning
that it had received sufficient scrutiny;

e the report had been approved by officers from Legal and Governance
Services and contained both legal and financial advice.

The Chairman invited the representatives of the signatories, Mr Darren
Butterfield and Mr Gary Martin of Unison to ask questions of the Portfolio
Holder for Children, Schools and Families. The questions were responded to
by the Portfolio Holder and officers including the Corporate Director, Children
and Families, as follows:

Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013 52 -47 -



-48 -

the key elements of the business case had been shared with both staff
and the trades’ unions;

no one present at the DJC meeting had requested the full business case
although the document was available. There would be further consultation
on the detailed proposals. The key element explained during the lengthy
discussions at the DJC meeting was progressive outsourcing;

the letter sent to the Leader of the Council by the Unison Branch Secretary
on 24 March 2013 had not been specifically copied to the Portfolio Holder
for Children, Schools and Families. If it had been then a response would
have been pursued. It was not possible to answer on behalf of the Leader
as to why a response had not been sent;

the Council had a statutory duty to provide transport assistance but there
did not have to be consultation on how it was delivered. As part of the
Cabinet decision, it was agreed that there would be consultation with
stakeholders regarding the eligibility criteria and the transport eligibility
policy refresh. There were only limited options to change the eligibility
criteria and any changes were, in the main, likely to be made to
independent travel training;

one version of the EglA on the website was draft and there were
differences between the two versions because SNT3 was a dynamic
project. The EqlA would be revisited during the three year programme.
There had been consultation with Members, transport service managers,
human resources and legal officers, the Policy Officer, Equalities and
Diversity, the Service Manager, Policy and Partnership and the Divisional
Director, Strategic Commissioning on the EqlA. It had been commented
that the EqglA did not include enough of the positive implications of the
project. There was no requirement for the EqlA to be considered at the
Departmental Children Equality Group and there was no necessity that the
EqlA be considered by the Quality Assurance Group one month prior to
Cabinet. A representative for the signatories commented that the EqlAs
did not include any profiling information on gender or race;

strong support for independent travel training but variability as to when it
was used had been expressed during the SNT2 project. It was widely
recognised that it was good practice to include an element of independent
travel training to allow children to travel to school on their own It should be
noted that SNT was for vulnerable young people and their families and
due to the dynamic nature of their needs, it was difficult to provide
quantitative evidence. Meetings had been held with the head teacher,
staff, service users and parents from Shaftesbury School and they had
expressed support for independent travel training;

53 Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013



e the letter inviting staff to attend the meetings on 28 March 2013 had not
explicitly made reference to outsourcing but had informed staff that at the
sessions they would be able to learn about the project;

o the alternative options had been presented at the meetings on 28 March
2013 but it had been explained that in order to achieve the savings there
would have to be progressive externalisation;

e an Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) notice would be issued
when a decision had been made on what would be procured and if the
financial amount required a notice.

The Chairman then invited Members of the Sub-Committee to ask questions
of the representatives of the signatories, the Portfolio Holder for Children,
Schools and Families and officers.

A Member asked about the extent of the consultation on SNT 1 and SNT 2
when 20% of the service had been outsourced. In response, a Unison
representative advised that the business cases had been provided to the
unions and there had been regular meetings. An officer stated that the 20%
of the service outsourced was not as a result of SNT 1 which focused on route
planning and the vehicle fleet or SNT 2 which addressed travel plans. Taxis
had been used to provide 20% of the service for a long time.

The Sub-Committee considered the consultation which had taken place on
SNT 3 and questioned whether officers felt it was adequate. The officers
commented that the Cabinet decision on 11 April 2013 was to allow the
project to progress and that further reports would be submitted on the
eligibility criteria.

A Member then queried whether an outline business case had been
produced, as had been done by Capita for SNT 1 and 2 and if the established
protocol of consulting the unions about the outline business case had been
followed. The officers explained that the SNT 3 programme had followed a
different procedure. Capita had produced an outline business case when
SNT 2 had been nearing completion but this was not pursued and an in-house
approach was followed resulting in the current full business case. The outline
business case for SNT 3 had involved consideration of a series of options
which were developed in the full business case and their suitability considered
at various meetings. The process was in line with human resources advice.
There had been delays in commencing the consultation due to the decisions
being required on the principle of outsourcing and there had been time
pressures created by the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).

When considering the EqlA and the approval process, such as which groups
agreed the document, the Sub-Committee requested clarification as to who
had approved the EqglA and why key factual information was absent. The
officers explained that the EqlA had been considered by some Members of
the Children’s Services EQIA Quality Assurance group but not at a formal
meeting. The document had been shared with divisional directors in the
Children and Families Directorate and by the relevant officers such as the

Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013 54 -49 -



-50 -

Policy Officer, Equalities and Diversity, the Service Manager, Policy and
Partnership and the Divisional Director Early Intervention Services. The lead
officer was the Programme Manager.

A Member then commented on the issues raised by officers regarding the
timetable and stated that meetings with the unions should have been
scheduled. The officers acknowledged that the report could have been
submitted to a later Cabinet meeting but informed Members that the advice
from human resources was that the requirements for pre-consultation had
been met. The unions had been aware of the MTFS and the savings for the
special transport service since December 2012.

The Sub-Committee were reminded that it was usual practice for there to be
trade union engagement prior to decisions being made by Members. The
Sub-Committee suggested that it would be useful for an officer from human
resources to be present at the meeting and an officer advised that the Senior
Business Partner was able to attend the meeting.

The Chairman welcomed the Senior Business Partner to the meeting.

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee on the level of consultation
with the unions, the timing of the consultation and the content of the DJC
meeting on 19 March 2013, the Senior Business Partner and other officers
repeated that a timetable of future consultation had been prepared to meet
the requirements of the Change Management Protocol. The DJC meeting on
19 March 2013 was the appropriate place to consult with the unions. It had
been made clear at this meeting that outsourcing was the option being
pursued and this was acknowledged in the comments of the union
representatives in attendance. Harrow was one of only two London Boroughs
which had not outsourced a large proportion of the SNT service.

The Sub-Committee queried when the unions and staff had been provided
with documents relating to the project. A Member questioned whether the
60% of staff who had not attended the sessions on 28 March 2013 had
received any official communication relating to the project and the proposals.
The officers confirmed that staff had received the letter of invitation in
advance of the meetings on 28 March 2013. At that meeting staff had been
given copies of the presentation. Consideration was being given to the
available options for additional staff meetings. The intention had been that all
staff would be written to following the Cabinet decision but this had been
delayed due to the call-in of the decision. As it was a three year project, the
implications for individual staff were not known at present but staff had been
informed that the transfer of undertakings (TUPE) would apply. Unison had
not received papers in advance of the DJC on 19 March 2013 and had
received a presentation at that meeting. There were questions at the staff
meetings on 28 March 2013 but these were predominantly from the trades’
unions’ representatives.

A Member commented that it was not appropriate to disregard protocols, such
as trade union consultation because of the MTFS and the current financial
challenges. The Member requested clarification on whether the outline
business case had been shared. The officers responded that it had not been

55 Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013



as a decision on the savings had not been made at that point and therefore
the document had not been shared.

(The Sub-Committee then adjourned from 5.58pm — 6.20pm to receive legal
advice).

The Chairman announced the decision of the Sub-Committee and it was
RESOLVED: (unanimously) That

(1)  the call-in on ground (a) — inadequate consultation with stakeholders
prior to the decision be upheld and referred back to Cabinet for re-
consideration and the Sub-Committee requested that the previously
agreed cross party practice of early trade union engagement be
followed and it was felt that it was best practice to engage with service
users where there was a major change to how a service was delivered;

(2) the call-in on ground (f)- insufficient consideration of legal and financial
advice not be upheld due to insufficient grounds;

(3) Cabinet to consider requesting a report that outlines the process of
drawing up and approving Equality Impact Assessments (EqlAs) for
Cabinet level decisions.

and (by a majority decision) that

(4) the call-in on ground (b) — the absence of adequate evidence on which
to base a decision - not be upheld due to insufficient grounds.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 4.06 pm, closed at 6.26 pm).

(Signed) COUNCILLOR JERRY MILES
Chairman

Call-In Sub-Committee - 29 April 2013 56 -51-



LONDON

__

DRAFT MINUTE EXTRACT

CABINET

11 APRIL 2013

Chairman: * Councillor Thaya ldaikkadar
Councillors: * Bob Currie * Phillip O'Dell
T Margaret Davine * David Perry
* Keith Ferry * Sachin Shah
* Mitzi Green T Bill Stephenson
* Graham Henson
In attendance: Susan Hall Minute 624
(Councillors) Barry Macleod-Cullinane  Minute 624

*  Denotes Member present
T Denotes apologies received

RESOLVED ITEMS

628. Special Needs Transport Change Programme 3 (SNT 3)

Cabinet received a report of the Divisional Director of Special Needs Services,
which set out a programme of change for the service that included significant
procurement of new suppliers to the Council over the next 3 years.

In inviting the Portfolio Holder for Children, Schools and Families to introduce
the report, the Leader of the Council stated that the way forward was well
defined and he thanked officers and his colleagues for their work.

The Portfolio Holder for Children, Schools and Families stated that as part of
the process for SNT 3, it was important that a high level of service continued
to be maintained. She was supported by the Corporate Director of Children
and Families in this regard, who added that following the successful
implementation of SNT 1 and 2, the Council had been working with relevant
parties, including the Unions, to deliver on SNT3.

Cabinet - 11 April 2013 57 -1-



The Corporate Director added that Harrow was one of the few local authorities
that had continued to maintain an in-house service. She informed Cabinet
that at present a percentage of the travel routes were outsourced. The
Council would work with local providers and the existing work force, over a
period of three years to deliver on this complex project. She cited an article in
a local newspaper, which showed the support given to this project by the
Chief Executive of the Harrow Association of Voluntary Services (HAVS).

The Portfolio Holders for Performance, Customer Services and Corporate
Services and Community and Cultural Services commended the work
undertaken by officers and the Portfolio Holder for Children, Schools and
Families with a view to further radicalising the services over a period,
including the building of relationships and trust with local organisations whilst
maintaining the services provided.

RESOLVED: That
(1)  the progress on the SNT3 Programme be noted,;

(2)  the Corporate Director of Children and Families, in consultation with
the Portfolio Holders for Children, Schools and Families, Property and
Major Contracts, and Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing, be
authorised to:

a) procure, select and award contracts to the preferred transport
services suppliers on such terms as agreed, acting in the best
interests of the Council and in doing so promoting local social
enterprises and private organisations;

b) consult on a new transport eligibility policy;

(3) a further progress report with a final draft policy be received for
approval in Autumn 2013.

Reason for Decision: The MTFS provided a need and a timeframe for
delivering further savings of £540k from special transport. The SNT3
programme would deliver the required savings whilst maintaining the service
required by residents.

To deliver savings within the timescales required delegated authority to
identify best providers and award contracts to the best placed provider.

A broader, more flexible delivery would future proof the service for the
direction of government policy. The preferred option would seek solutions
that were delivered by local suppliers and local social and community
enterprises.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: As set out in the report.

Conflict of Interest relating to the matter declared by Cabinet Member /
Dispensation Granted: None.

58 Cabinet - 11 April 2013



REPORT FOR: CABINET

Date of Meeting: 11 April 2013

- . Special Needs Transport
Subject: Change Programme 3 (SNT3)
Key Decision: Yes

Roger Rickman, Divisional Director of
Special Needs Service

Councillor Mitzi Green, Portfolio Holder for
Children, Schools and Families

Responsible Officer:

Councillor Thaya ldaikkadar, Leader of the
Portfolio Holder: Council and Portfolio Holder for Property and
Major Contracts

Councillor Margaret Davine, Portfolio Holder
for Adult Social Care, health and Wellbeing

Exempt: No

Decision subject to

Call-in: Yes

Enclosures: Full Equalities Impact Assessment

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report outlines the full programme of change for the service which
includes significant procurement of new suppliers to the Council over the next
3 years. The report seeks delegated authority to deliver the full programme
and procure, and award contracts to the preferred suppliers.

59 ( %/‘fﬂ&tCDUNCIL )

LONDON



Recommendations:
Cabinet is requested to:
1. Note the progress on the SNT3 programme;

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Children & Families in consultation with
the Portfolio Holders for Children, Schools and Families, Property & Major
Contracts and Adults & Housing to:

a) Procure, select and award contracts to the preferred transport
services suppliers on such terms as are agreed, acting in the best
interests of the Council and in doing so promoting local social
enterprises and private organisations

b) Consult on a new transport eligibility policy

3. Agree to receive a further progress report with a final draft policy for
approval in Autumn 2013.

Reason: (for recommendation)

The current MTFS provides a need and a time-frame for delivering further
savings of £540k from special transport. The SNT3 programme will deliver the
required savings whilst maintaining the service required by residents.

To deliver savings within the time-scales will require delegated authority to
identify best providers and award contracts to the best-placed provider.

A broader, more flexible delivery will future-proof the service for the direction
of government policy. The preferred option will be seek solutions that are
delivered by local suppliers and local social and community enterprises.

Section 2 - Report

1. Introduction

1.1. Having already delivered two successful change programmes in Special
Needs Transport Services over the last 3 years and saved between them over
£1million in annual costs, a third programme, Special Needs Transport 3 or ‘SNT3’ is
set-out to deliver a further saving of £540k.

1.2. The SNT3 Programme, has 10 complementary workstreams, which together
will deliver the £540k savings target in 2014/15 as required by the MTFS for the year
2014/15. At the end of the 3 years, the programme will provide a sustainable saving of
approximately £1.06m.

60



1.3. These significant savings will be achieved whilst increasing the
independence of service users, lowering carbon emissions, improving delivery
processes and safeguarding the provision of transport for children and young adults.

1.4. Within the programme’s 10 workstreams, there are three main elements of
activity; (1) Demand Management, (2) Current Cost-Control & (3) Future Cost-Control.

1.5. The outcome of the SNT3 Programme will be to preserve access to services,
to increase the range of services available to transport recipients and in doing so
improve the life experiences of learners that are receiving transport assistance.

1.6. The workstreams achieve more users travelling independently, lower costs in
delivering the current transport operation and greater flexibility with lower costs for all
future provision.

1.7. The most significant costs, savings and risks within the SNT3 programme,
are within the third element, Future Cost-Control, which will require engagement with
the market and Harrow Council moving from a provider of services to a commissioner
of services.

1.8. Where services are transferred to external suppliers, Harrow Council will
work to stimulate innovation and inclusion of Harrow’s social enterprises, charities and
small scale private service providers.

1.9. Using local, small scale community and social providers, will provide on-
going employment opportunities for staff, create favourable conditions to stimulate
innovation, maintain an element of competition and create resilience and capacity
within the wider supply chain.

1.10. This will require breaking leases with the current vehicle provider, Fraikin Ltd,
and commencing new service contracts with local social enterprises and small
business.

2. Background

2.1. Harrow Council has a Statutory duty to provide transport assistance to
‘eligible’ children and young adults. An eligible child defined in Schedule 35B of the
Education Act 1996 and include Children who attend schools beyond the statutory
walking distance, Children with SEN, disabilities or mobility problems, Children whose
route to school is unsafe and Children from low income families and so could be
broadly described as someone for whom the use of standard modes of transport would
be inappropriate due to their physical or emotional needs. An ‘eligible’ adult is ‘an
adult who is aged under 25 and is subject to a learning difficulty assessment.’

2.2. s508B of the same Act says that the LA must make such travel
arrangements as they consider necessary ‘in order to secure that suitable home to
school travel arrangements for the purpose of facilitating the child’s attendance at the
relevant educational establishment...are made'

2.3. The future direction of Government Policy for Special Education and
Transport is towards a greater level of customer choice and involvement. This could

61



go as far as a potential move towards the use of personal budgets for either education
or transport or both elements, which could pose a significant financial risk to a mainly
in house service. The design of the SNT3 programme creates more flexibility in the
delivery of transport which will help mitigate risk, as well as creating choice.

24. In Harrow, there are 515 children and young adults who are given transport
assistance to and from school or college. Transport is arranged for service users in
what are called ‘routes’. These routes range from 8-10 children transported in a
Council minibus to one or more children transported in a private taxi.

2.5. Currently Harrow uses a fleet of 70 mini-buses to transport the children,
operated by 154 staff, that are employed part-time, term-time only, to deliver the
significant proportion of the Children’s Special Transport Service.

2.6. The Adults element of the service caters for 350 users, with 14 mini-buses,
and in the region of 35 full-time staff on more standard work and leave contracts.

2.7. All special needs transport (for Children and Adults) is managed by a single
team of 10 staff (8.4 FTE) who between them manage the delivery of both services
and the large workforce.

2.8. 20% of the current ‘routes’ are provided by local small business, social
enterprises and local taxi firms. These have already been re-procured within the SNT3
programme using a newly established Transport Procurement Framework

2.9. The SNT3 programme will extend this strategy further, using more local,
small scale private, community and social providers, creating a mixed approach to
supply, a choice of providers for commissioners of services and a competitive element
within the market.

2.10. Initial impact analysis of the re-tendering through the framework is
forecasting a £115k reduction in overall costs, which is a 20% reduction from the
previous spend. This serves as an indication of where well designed and well
managed buying can reduce costs, even where already savings have been made.

The SNT3 Programme: Demand Management

2.11. As mentioned above, the SNT3 programme has three elements and 10
workstreams. The first of the three elements is ‘demand management’ which includes
the following three work streams:

2.11.1. Eligibility Policy Refresh
2.11.2. Independent Travel Training (ITT)
2.11.3. Direct Transport Payments (DTP).
2.12. In summary, these were all trialled within SNT2 and all aim to offer new

services to users, more flexible solutions, reduce the overall demand and cost of
transport and to increase the life-long independence of service users

2.13. The policy refresh applies to services provided to those attending education
placements and is designed firstly to give council support to the new forms of service

62



that will be mainstreamed within the programme. Eligibility for transport services to
adults as part of community care services will not be affected. The refresh and re-
determining of the policy may mean some children and young adults falling out of
eligibility. The results of the policy consultation will be considered in the final policy
drafting and brought back to Cabinet to provide information on the comments received
and to make a decision on the formal adoption of a new policy..

2.14. Consultation on the policy will be with parents/carers of children, children and
young adults attending education institutions, schools and representative groups. We
will be asking service users questions regarding the use of alternative providers, the
introduction of ITT and DTP, eligibility for those attending education placements and
potentially the tightening of allocation for some users.

The SNT3 Programme: Current Cost Control
2.15. The Current Cost Control element includes the following six work streams:

2.15.1. Fraikin Supplier Relationship Development (SRD)

2.15.2. Identifying new providers for short-term hire

2.15.3. Invitations to all schools to become transport providers

2.15.4. A LEAN review of the Transport Services Processes

2.15.5. Re-tendering of the 20% of external routes (complete)

2.15.6. A focus on sickness absence from the outcomes of the LEAN
project

2.16. All of the workstreams in Current Cost Control are attached to costs that can
be reduced relatively quickly. For instance the Fraikin SRD work is already providing
benefits, such as faster response times and spare vehicles provided free of charge. A
new deal on spot-hire vehicles will be complete in March 2013. The re-tendering work
for taxis is already complete and making positive budget impacts.

The SNT3 Programme: Future Cost Control
217. The Future Cost Control workstream is centred around a three year
programme of market engagement and increasing the number of routes delivered by
local suppliers including third sector and community organisations and small local
business. This element of the programme is known as:

2171. Strategic Market Engagement

2.18. A survey of 11 London Boroughs completed in January 2013, showed that 6
of the authorities had all transport provided externally (Lambeth, Haringey, Ealing,
Croydon, Waltham Forest, Kingston), Brent are 90% external, Hounslow & Enfield
~60% external, Enfield split internal/external, Harrow & Lewisham are provided in-
house except for the 20% taxi and smaller vehicle provision.

2.19. Within the boroughs that have services provided externally, there is a great
variation in approach. For instance, two authorities have a single contract for the
whole of the provision, one with a strategic partner that is profit driven, another with a
Community Transport Group, others largely have two or more providers, particularly
those that have been included in recent framework procurement activity where 3-5
providers is the normal range.

63



2.20. Having a balance of providers, creates opportunities for all types of suppliers
to grow at a suitable pace, to take part in the market to the scale that suits them and to
use the strengths of their individual organisations when bidding for work.

2.21. Keeping the number of providers higher, increases the stimulation to
innovate, keeps costs low to the authorities and allows authority commissioners to both
place contracts with the best-placed providers and avoid suppliers who cannot meet
our quality criteria. Whilst maintaining the supply of core transport services, there will
inevitably be an impact on delivery standards through reducing costs. These will be
carefully managed and suppliers that fail to provide services to the required standard
will have contracts put at risk or cancelled.

2.22. To further ensure there is a ready-supply of local, small and social providers
with the capacity and capability to provide services to the required standard, the
framework will be refreshed in 2014.

2.23. Refreshing the framework will re-open the supply of services to the full
market, this gives the Council the ability to work with small business and social
enterprises to further develop the market, to stimulate innovation and to improve the
overall standard of delivery.

2.24. This activity is planned to commence in May 2013. This time-scale gives a
long lead-in period which will favour those social and private organisations seeking to
grow slowly, to make sure they are prepared for taking on new services and to ensure
that our approach is broad in attracting a range organisations.

2.25. Two rounds of soft market testing have been completed to model potential
savings from market engagement. The first with providers that are registered on the
West London Alliance framework, which has provided real pricing for potential work,
the second comparing Barnet procured routes (without escorts) with the Harrow
current routes (taking account of escorts). These have shown a typical price reduction
of around 30% from current costs to external costs.

2.26. Phasing provides additional opportunities for refreshing the suppliers within
the framework and to work with suppliers to maintain and improve service delivery
standards. A three year roll-out gives time for the management team to design and
refine their contract management practices. Finally, the three year time-frame gives
time to down-scale the fleet without flooding the market and choosing the timing and
management of vehicle disposals.

2.27. It is the intention of this Programme to offer a greater number of routes
to local, social and private external suppliers. Over a period of three years the
service will shift from being 20% externalised to towards 100%, allowing more
freedom for Harrow Council and shifting to a commissioning model.

2.28. This will require cancelling leases with the vehicle provider (Fraikin)
and designing a new client management team.

2.29. These are all factored into the SNT3 Programme workstreams and into
the costings that form the business case.

64



2.30. Cost-saving forecasts for this work stream, include the cost of buying-out of
the current Fraikin leases which would be necessary to move to a commissioned
service model.

The SNT3 Programme: Costs & Benefits

2.31. The benefits and costs of the full programme are shown in the table below.
The aim of the SNT3 programme, is to meet the £540k MTFS savings target for
2014/15 and take account of the requirements of other budget pressures from previous

programmes and changes in grant levels.

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
(Net Saving) | (Net Saving) | (Net Saving) | (Net Saving) | (Net Saving) | (Net Saving)
/ Net Cost /Net Cost /Net Cost /Net Cost /Net Cost /Net Cost
£ £ £ £ £ £

Medium Term Financial (56,000) (641,000) (641,000) (641,000) (641,000) | (2,620,000)
Strategy (MTFS) Savings
Medium Term Financial 495,852 207,870 81,388 785,110
Strategy (MTFS) Costs*
Further anticipated budget (26,500) (53,000) (141,000) (229,000) (229,000) (678,500)
pressures that need to be
managed through SNT 3
Net MTFS Position 413,352 (486,130) (700,612) (870,000) (870,000) | (2,513,390)
SNT 3 Forecast (Savings) (307,485) (773,822) (987,863) | (1,062,328) | (1,062,328) | (4,193,825)
Implementation Costs
Project Costs 52,000 52,000
Potential 443,852 207,870 81,388 0 0 733,110
redundancies/severance (if
applicable)
Vehicle lease termination 211,409 165,023 89,317 465,749
costs
Total Delivery Costs 707,262 372,893 170,705 0 0 1,250,859
SNT3 Net (Savings)/Costs 399,777 (400,929) (817,159) | (1,062,328) | (1,062,328) | (2,942,966)
(Over)/under delivery of (13,575) 85,201 (116,547) (192,328) (192,328) (429,576)
MTFS Savings

* project costs included in MTFS growth and redundancy/severance costs (if
applicable) considered as part of corporate provision for redundancy

2.32.

The programme will save £773k in the target year 2014/15, with costs of

£373k, delivering a net saving of £400k. By the last year of the programme (2016/17),
the full year effect of the three phases of work will deliver savings of £1.062m.

2.33.

costs of £1.25m, delivering a net saving of £2.9m over 5 years.

2.34.

During the 5 year period there will be total savings of £4.2m, against total

As mentioned above, the final full-year effect is a saving of £1,061m, forecast

to be delivered in 2016/17. The MTFS position requires a saving of £641k, SNT 3
therefore is forecast to over-deliver by £421k, this will manage the additional

65



requirements of anticipated budget pressures of £229k in that year, leaving a net
budget position of £192k surplus.

2.35. The phasing and over-delivery allows a level of flex to manage any potential
risks of quality in delivery and price sustainability.

3. Staffing Implications

3.1. Where there is a service provision transfer then The Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) will operate to transfer in scope
employees to a new provider. All of the Council’s rights, powers, duties, and liabilities
(except criminal liabilities) under or in connection with the contracts of employment of
the relevant staff will transfer. There are current Government proposals to amend the
TUPE regulations, which could be implemented during the course of this programme.

3.2. The number of staff employed in connection with the service is approximately
200, which includes a high number of part time, term time only staff. 10 staff manage
the delivery of the operation and large workforce.

3.3. Where any change results in a TUPE transfer the Council will meet all of its
statutory obligations provided by TUPE. Under TUPE, existing contractual terms and
conditions are protected on transfer. In addition the Council has a protocol for
managing organisational change, which includes consultation and union engagement.

3.4. The full programme will be delivered over three years, which gives time to the
staff affected by the change programme to adapt to the proposals and consider the
options available.

3.5. Whilst TUPE applies by operation of law, it is possible that circumstances
could arise where it would be in the interests of the Council to consider a voluntary
severance or redundancy scheme. If this situation arises a separate report to Cabinet
would be made.

4. Legal Implications

4.1. Under the Education Act 1996 local authorities have statutory duties to
provide transport to ‘eligible’ children and young adults to educational establishments
in specified circumstances. There is an element of discretion contained within these
duties.

4.2. Any change to Harrow’s eligibility policy, which sets out how it will exercise its
discretion, must take account of any consultation responses, government guidance
and equality issues. This will be particularly relevant if any child or young adult who
was previously receiving a service will no longer be eligible. The results of the
consultation and equality implications will be included the a future report on approval of
the new eligibility policy.

4.3. In procuring and awarding contracts, the Council will comply with EU
procurement rules and its own contract procedure rules.

66



5. Financial Implications
5.1. The budget for Children’s Special Needs Transport in 2012/13 totals £3.34m.

5.2. Since 2009/10 the service has already delivered significant savings through
improved efficiency and by reducing demand for the service; a further reduction of
£101,000 from these programmes is still to be delivered in the 2013/14 MTFS. More
significantly the service is tasked with delivering additional savings of £540,000 in
2014/15. Following these reductions (totalling £641k) the service is left with a net
council budget in 2014/15 of only £2.7m, a 32% reduction since 2009/10. Given the
scale of the savings already delivered these further budget reductions require
transformational change to the service’s operating model.

5.3. The work streams included in SNT3, when fully implemented look to deliver
savings totalling £1,062k. In addition to meeting the MTFS budget reductions of £641k
it will also meet the anticipated cessation of the Dept of Transport’s Bus Services
Operating Grant and provides for the loss of internal income for the courier service and
from school buyback, totalling £229k.

5.4. The majority of the savings, £877k, are delivered by transferring the service
to external providers. This projection is based on extensive soft market testing and
benchmarking with neighbouring boroughs through the WLA, which should mitigate the
risk that the market will not deliver this scale of savings. The soft market testing did
not include the potential effect of staff transferring under TUPE, as the precise effect
could not be identified and as such the level of savings could not take account of this.
When tendering for services, providers will have to take account of potential TUPE
transferring staff. However, the costs of potential redundancies/severance (if offered)
have been included in the implementation costs.

5.5. The proposals require the termination of the vehicle lease agreements, which
will incur termination costs. The extent of the termination payments will depend on
resale values however the business case includes a prudent estimate of £466k over
the 3 years 2013/14 to 2015/16.

5.6. Based on these forecasts there is a slight under delivery of saving in 2014/15
of £85k, this is more than off-set by projected on-going over delivery of £192k.

6. Performance Issues

6.1. Each of the new services introduced in the SNT3 Programme will have either
Service Level Agreements in-place or contracts that set-out the required standards.

6.2. Performance of each of the services will be measured and managed against
the standards set-out in the agreements and contracts.

6.3. There is a specific work-stream within the programme to identify the contract
management needs of an increasingly commissioned service and to ensure that the
right resources with sufficient skills are targeted towards the effective management of
all new arrangements

67



6.4. Lessons learned in the Highway tender have been adopted within this
programme to ensure there are effective mechanisms in-place for Councillor
involvement in the procurement process and in the ongoing management of
contractors.

6.5. Any customer complaints will be managed in the same way as they are
currently managed. Contractors will be asked to show how customer feedback is
being captured

6.6. Ensuring providers perform adequately and deliver services in accordance to
contract specification is the principal reason for the LEAN review. The requirements of
an increasingly commissioned service will be factored into the review to make sure the
client team is appropriately staffed and trained, well ahead of the time when the team
will be needed

6.7. The changes proposed under the programme do not have any impact on
national indicators.

7. Environmental Impact

7.1. Harrow Council is fulfilling its duty to promote sustainable modes of transport
in offering a broader package of services including Independent Travel Training.

7.2. If the Independent Travel Training service is successful, there will be a
decreased demand for Harrow arranged and dedicated transport, with a corresponding
increase in children and young adults using public transport. This will reduce local
transport emissions and have the knock-on effect of those trained having a greater
confidence and desire to use public transport outside of ‘home to school’ transport.

7.3. The greater use of personal budgets for transport may cause some
displacement into private cars.

7.4. Any new providers that are applying to work for Harrow through the three
phases of strategic market engagement, will be required to demonstrate how they
comply with and support the Council’s Sustainable Procurement Policy and where
minibuses are used will have to report to the Council on their fuel usage.

7.5. Their responses to sustainability requirements will form part of the decision-
making around supplier selection and supplier management. They will, therefore, have
to demonstrate a real and measurable commitment to minimising environmental
impacts and generating local “social value” in order to join the procurement framework.

7.6. Local Social Enterprises, small and medium sized private providers are the
target market for procurement activity. Local small scale providers will have time and
support to develop with the free and fair opportunity to compete for places on the
procurement framework.

7.7 Where transport operators provide services, currently carried out in-house,

the suppliers will need to report fuel use to the Council to enable carbon emission
totals to continue to be reported by the Council.

68



8. Risk Management Implications

8.1. There is an up to date full risk register is kept by the Programme Manager.
Strategic Risks are managed by the relevant boards, less significant risks managed by
the Programme Manager.

8.2. The outputs of a risk workshop is the basis for the risk register and further
risk workshops are completed quarterly to update and refresh the view of risk.

8.3. The Programme as a whole is ‘managed by exception’ and reports on this
basis to three boards, the SNT3 Programme Board, the Children & Families
Programme Board and the Corporate Transformation 2 Board through VERTO.

8.4. Issues and changes in risks are highlighted to the appropriate boards with
requests for decisions or actions.

9. Equalities implications
9.1. The public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
provides:

“(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the
need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under this Act; (b) advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share
it; (c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

9.2. A full equality impact assessment was carried out and is attached to this
report. As part of the procurement, robust equality requirements will be included
within the specification and these will be part of the supplier selection decision-
making process.

9.3. There was also a potential adverse impact in relation to users not having
continuity of driver. A mitigating measure is to include in the tender a requirement to
seek to ensure continuity of driver where possible and to give advance notice of the
change of provider to all users. One of the consequences of the proposed changes is
to offer alternative travel options, including independent travel training and use of
personal budgets to secure transport. This may have a positive impact on disabled
service users.

9.4. The assessment highlighted that there was a potential adverse impact in
relation to age for staff, as nearly half the employees affected are age 60 or over.
Whether the impact of the changes are positive or negative will depend on individual
staff circumstances. Mitigation measures include compliance with the protocol for
managing change, which is mentioned in the staffing implications section.

69



9.5. A further EQIA will be completed following consultation on the new draft
policy and the results of this will be fed back in a further report to Cabinet.

10. Corporate Priorities
10.1. Please identify which corporate priority the report incorporates and how:
10.1.1. Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green & safe.

There will be a net decrease in the amount of council provided
transport and an increase in the use of already operating
sustainable modes of transport.

10.1.2. United and involved communities: A Council that listens and
leads.
There are currently transport users that receive transport that would
prefer to be travel-trained and use transport more independently. In
providing a transport service, the Council is responding to a current
demand for travel training.

In mainstreaming Direct Transport Payments, there will be a greater
choice for customers in how they travel and the potential for
arranging their own transport.

10.1.3. Supporting and protecting people who are most in need
The SNT3 Programme offers a continuous access to transport for
dependent children and young adults. This will be achieved whilst
delivering savings. Having a mix of future providers will stimulate
customer quality focus, innovation and provider cost-
consciousness.

10.1.4. Supporting our town centre, our local shopping centres and
businesses.

The service will offer social enterprises and local small scale
businesses based in Harrow the opportunity to become first tier
suppliers to the Council through the procurement framework, and to
become second tier suppliers by requiring all providers to make
their supply and sub-contracting opportunities available to local
businesses.

70



Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Patricia Harvey Chief Financial Officer

Date: 4 April 2013

on behalf of the
Name: Sarah Wilson Monitoring Officer

Date: 4 April 2013

Section 4 - Performance Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: David Harrington Divisional Director
Strategic Commissioning

Date: 4 April 2013

Section 5 - Environmental Impact Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Andrew Baker Divisional Director
(Environmental Services)

Date: 5 April 2013

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact: Ben Sellar-Moore, Programme Manager
Tel: 020 8424 8218 (Int Extn: 8218)

Background Papers:

Special Needs Transport 3 — Full Business Case

71



Call-In Waived by the
Chairman of Overview
and Scrutiny Committee

NOT APPLICABLE

[Call-in applies]

12




I 210z AeN — ¢ uoisiap

Aianijap ui Ayjenb uiejuiew o3 sjqeun s10}oejuo?) ‘Gl
sJ8jsuel) 34N 40 % ybiy e o} enp pajoadxe uey) A}S0o aiow S}oeijuo) t|
pajjepow uey) aaisuadxs alow jno-Anq unjieid ‘€L
adoas Jo %o 0} 8np youne| j,usaop josfoid oussqy ‘Z | ¢S8WO2IN0 pue seARoslqo
. ‘swie asay) bulnaiyoe wody noA
paysi|qejse Jou [8po Jusl|D ¢c#NY3T Li Juenaid p|Noo S8010} / SI0108) JBUM “Z
paynusepl sapiunyoddo N7 Jo Jequinu Mo LENYTT 04
PBAIBOB. JOU Uil WOoJ) Wwielo pajep-yoeg ‘¢
:SMoJ|o4 st aJe s)slI a1bajelys ay |

(019 ELBIIO Bulbueyo

‘sysod JO uone|ep ‘92IAI8S JO |BAOWASI
siapinoid |euisixe Aq palsiljep podsuel) Jo abejusalad iojealb / uononpai ‘60 sjesodouid uiejdx3)

‘DouBsqe 9210J-)I0M poonpal ‘sessasold mau P Josloid NyFT 8y) Jo Lioaijep ‘unjied jo Juswabeuew
1snqou asow ‘Aaijod meu ui Ajuejo ‘sjebpngq jeuosiad jo asn 9 buljjeel) Juspuadapul aiow :ale swiy | ¢s|esodold JnoA Jo sewoolno palst
pue ‘saAloalqo ‘swie ay) aie Jeypn om
MaIAIBAQ :| obeli

€10z Menugad Gz :JUSWISSASSE JO 9je(]

E— B E— i 'v1b3
(¥N"AOD "MOIIey@aIl00W-Ie||8S Ua(q ;8| ZQ) 8J00|\-Je||9S uag S O [T SYEAIEE] 0 S 10 S TS BELES 5 G
uewory Jaboy J921)J0 pe9| Jo aj1 qol pue sawepN

S92IAI9S Saljlwe § S ,ualp|iy) £SIU1 1oy Ajjiqisuodsal sey 921A18S / 81e1030alig YDIYAA

(aanmonusal ‘ainpaoold ‘0sloud ‘Abejesis ‘uonouny
‘MaINBI BOIAIBS ‘Malnal Aoljod ‘Aoljod mau e sepnjoul
Jesodoud, :8)oN) ¢ passasse buiaq sjesodoud ayj ale Jeypn

uolesijeulaixa ybnoiy) 99IAI8S pauoISSILIWOD e Buleq spiemo)
Buiiys (g) seainies mau Jo uononpodul () Aoljod paysadjal (1) :awwelbold €1NS

"JusWISSasse pue wio} sy} Buns|dwos ul noA 1sisse 0} 8say) 0} Jajel ases|d 'sy|b3

uo sauljapIng ajeiodio) ay) peal pue a|npoy Buluies|-g yib3g syl pae|dwod aAey noA 1ey) Jueuodul sI )l ‘UBWSSSSSE SIY) 1N0 A1IeD 0] JapJo U]

(vib3) Juswissassy joeduwy Ajijenb3 |In4 - Z 31V1dINTL




4 210z AeN —  uoisiop

SaljIjIqesIp aAeYy 0} umouy aJe Jejs 9 (ejdoad
pajgesip jo siased Buipnjoul) Ayjigesiq
"Gz 0] ¢ wouj ebuei sebe ‘Aynoiyip buiuies| 4o eaIsAyd e aney siouio}sno ||y

‘6> %8 “+0V %okl ‘+0S %SE +09 %EY +0. %E dlyoid obe yejs (eidoad
Jap|o/BunoA Jo sialed Buipnjoul) aby
Gz — G pabe siawo)sna 1esn 8IS 00G

(ueyd uonoe ay;
ul Ssaippe 0} uonoe ue Se Siy) apnjoul 0} paau Aew noA ‘sdeb aney noA aiayp) “SaljsLBORIBYD Pajosjoid sulu 8y} Uo ejep apnjoul 8jqissod aiayi)

0]8 suoljenjens ‘yaiessaJ [euoljeu pue

/B20] ‘sgjijoid s1osn 82IAIBS ‘SojIijoid 8210plI0M ‘SABAINS JJB)IS ‘SMBIAIB)UI Yoieasal ‘Sdnoub snaoy ‘SAoAInS UuoIjoBSIIeS 1oWoiSNd 48xoe.) JUSLLBAJOAUI

8y} pue suoe)NSUO0 WoJj S)Nsal spnjoul ued siy “(onsusjoeleyod pajosjoid) dnoib Ajjenbe yoes uo joedwi [ejjusjod sy} suilLI8}ap O} PMBIA <

(seoua.sja. |ny Buipnjour) 8auspine pue SJiSIie)S ‘ejep [enjoe ay) apnjoul ¢sjesodoud inoA jo joedwi ay) Ssasse 0} ajqejieAe Si uoijewliojul jeys ™S
eleq / @ouapiang bunoa|o) / buoyuoyy :z abe

weaj Jual|o 8y} swooaq [lIm @ Mairal NI dy} Ul POAJOAUI 8q [[IM ‘Jaxiewl 8y} 0} Paldjjo 8q O] S8JNnoJ £luawssasse siy)
8y} Jo BuLiap.io 8y} ussoyd aAey wea | podsuel] ay] -aseyd AiaAlsp ay) UIy)IM pa}nsSuod aq J[IM 4e)s - Ul PaAjoAUl 8q AaU) [[IM/8]e MOH ey

Ainqisuodsal
[|lBJOAO BU] SBY OUYA\ o
isJauped ay) aie OYA\\
:0S J| juonesiueblo
Jo Aluoyjne ‘quawiedap Jayjoue
ypum palteys Ajjiqisuodsal 8y} s| “p

SIB8A £ 19A0 PBUOISSILILLIOD %00 O} 8A0W [IM Jo8lold -
(weoa | buiuue|d podsuel|) wes) auo Aq Aieaijep jeuonelado ® Jusijd ‘paainosino 9,0z Ajpualing -

"0]8 90J0J3JOM 8U] ‘Siap|oysyels

weaj ‘sJjaupied ‘SaiUNWIWOD ‘SI8W0)}SND
SYVYN3S ‘wes) bujuueld podsuel ‘sjooyos ‘sialed 9 sjuaied ‘sisjjddns Jje}S :Siopjoydye)s pajosyy | |eulsjul/eulsixs au) ale oym ajdwexa
Jodsuel) buinieoda. usipfiyn) siouwoysn?) Jo4 ¢|esodoud siy) Aq pajoaye aq

[IIM OUAA ¢,S18W0)snd ay) ale oypA €




€ 2102 Ae\ — ¢ uoisiap

ID{[00] JUSWSAJOAUT AJIUNWWOD/69T/UOIIBYNSUO0D/S6T00Z/03ul/gnymoliey//-dny
MO|Dq )ul] Y] BIA PISS3dde 3 ued }H|00] JUSBWIDA|OAUI AJluNnWwwWod /uoije}jnsuod uo aduepinn

Vb3 8y} Jo 1sa1 8y} yum bBuissaiboid aiojaq pajsjdwod aq 0} spasu uoneynsuod pasodoud Auy ‘way) 108e (M Aay) moy se sjesodoud 1noA

UuO Wiay} YIM }nsuod o} Juem Aew noA ‘poedwi |enusjod ay) ssesse 0] ajqeun aje NOA pue soljslialoeleyo pajoslold ay) Jo Aue o) uoneuwlojul/erep
JuaIoIyNsul Aey NoA JI ‘eidwexsa Jo4 0] paau noA Jayjaym JapISuod pjnoys NoA ‘184 se uolje)nsuod Aue usyeuspun jou aAey NoA §| ;310N

(suasn 82IAI8S pue SjuspIsa. ‘siepjoyaxels ‘sdnoib Aiejunjo / Apunwiwiod ‘suoiun

ON | S9A | SOA ‘siequisl ‘Yejs yim uoneinsuod spnjoul Aew siyj) ¢sjresodoud unoA uo uoneynsuod Aue usyeuspun noA aneH °J
"uoIo8s

Siy} ul (sbuipuly Aey ‘@ouspine ‘seunbi) ‘sjoej) ejep Siy} apn|o 0

N~
‘suoijosfoid aiydeisbowsp ZJUBLUSSBSSE SIY) WIOJUI UR) Jey) S824n0S ejep (Bipdw.

0} buipioaoe sjinpe bunoA % ualpjiyo NJS Ul yymoab e aq o} Ajexi s1 eJay | ‘spodal ‘yaiessal jeuoijeu ‘(euolbal ‘1o0f) 4eyjo Aue aisyj S| ‘9

joedwi umouy oN uofejuauQ |enxas

ajelia- aJe SLI0JS8 ]SO ‘Bjeyy 8Je SIoALIP JSON 1OPUBS) | XOS

8/ewa- uey) SIauojSno ajell 9oy

joedwi umouy oN Jaljag pue uolbijay

Joeduwi umouy oN 90eY

joedwr umouy oN Anuieiey pue Aoueubald

Joedws umous| oN diysseuped im0 / ebeluen

Juswubisseay Jepuss)

Joedwi umouy oN




2102 Ae\ — ¢ uoisIap

uoisinoid ui Aous)sisuod
yo8s sJaliddns jeyj jsenba. (z)
uondo 41 @ e dojanap o0} enunuoa (L)

‘uoisinoad podsued) ur Aous)sisuod
Jajoid podsuel| [eroads

JO sjuai|n “uonpdo ay} i Aew
Jayjo uswAed joalip e aAI828.
si9Je9 9 sjuaied NJS 8WOS

sbuijssw 8oe) 0] 8L

SYVN3S :1obeuey wes] (g)

uone)NSU0I Yejs ul suoiun aAjoauj (g)

(dLa
‘1 1] Quswoebebus jaxiepy ‘9oussqy

‘eseyd uone)nsuog jjejs
Ul SUOIUM 8pel] BAJOAU| "S)Se)

‘ ) sweaJjs-yiom sjeldoidde YHOM 9 $8/0J ‘SJ0BAU0D BulAj08ds sbunssw 8ok} 0} 89E weal
NV 1S e ul jenpuasse si jndur weo | " 4 01 9984 jiodsue.] :iobeuey weay ( ©
8y} peg| wes) podsueu) ay) ainsus (g) . ~
SLI00S8 % SIBALIP Ul A)Ynuipuod
senelqo Ajenb [enjoeuod | o oo s ewiorsno wiepe
Jesw suayddns jeyj ensus (L) /9.4 pj / 1189
JUBWBAJOAUI [OOYOS
ybnoiyj Sa2IAIas mau 9 ysaijal Aojjod
ur sauaipne jabiej yjim }jnsuod (g) uoipeynsuoa Aaijod wo.y sjooyas

sjuswobue.ie jaael) Juspuadapul
mau Aue osaube sjusied ainsus (Z)
saAjoalqo

Ayjenb josw sisiddns jey; ensue (L)

SJ8W0}SN9 pajqesip uey} Jayjo
sdnoub Jejnaiped uo joedwi oN

sbuijgsw 8oej 0] 8L

Jeroads jo sioyoea] peaH (L)

(G abejs je ueld uonay Juswaroiduw
8} uj esay} epnjou| os|y)
"1oedwi asianpe
Aue a1ebniw 0} sdajs ‘sjesodo.d
JnoA Buisinal spnjoul Aew siy |
¢, UOI1B}INSU09 8y} JO }|nsal
B se aye) 0} buiob noA aie uonoe 1eypn

¢(sonsuejoeleyo

pajoajoid) sdnoib
Ajjenba jualayip uo joedwi ay}
1noge Moys s)nsal ay) op JeypA

ipasn
2JaM SpoyjaW UOoNB)NSU0D JeypA

¢ pajnsuod sem oypn(L)




2102 Ae\ — ¢ uoisIap

77

Sjuswabue.lie |aael) pue buiuiel)
JO [043u02 Ul aJe sjuaied ains axew (g)
J8JJo | || dojanap 0} anuiuoa (L)

buiureuy se)je

|eAe.) Juspuadapul yjm pesye
ob jou Jo Buiurely dojs o) Ajqe

8y} aney o} aney Jim sjusied
‘mouy Aay) ejdoad Aq pauiel;
8q 0} Jsjaid pjnom usaipjiyo

uonejussaid Buiusrs sjuaied

Jooyss Ainqsayeys
:sloie?) p spuaied (y)




9 210z AeN —  uoisiop

uonejuslO
ON ON |[enxas
sjybL 34N ybnouyj seysuel - soaoue)swnall jeuosisad
suoido pue joeduwi 1apisuod o} Ayunuoddo uo buipuadap arnebau 1o anisod Jayjie aq ON ON o
oy} yejs buinib ‘sieaf ¢ sono peseyd josloid - | pinoo Aouepunpa. jenusjod  abueyd sjulsd - S
N N | joieg 10 uoiBijey
ON ON aoey
Aluiare
ON ON pue Aoueubalid
diysiauped |INID
ON ON pue abele
o o Juswubisses m
N N Japue
(edoad
sJesn podsuel) o abueyd Jo aa1jou aAIb -
Jejs ® sopinoid podsuel) pebuey?) - pajgesIp Jo
$J0BJ3U0D JBpInoJd Ul A)NuUUOI Jje)s X4oos - jlews SOA
sJajjene.) Juspuadapul JO JoqUUNU 18)Rd.~) - sJaied Buipnjour)
JusWBIUBWILIOD B8i0jaq bulurel) Ajpjes - ANI9EsIq
SwbL BNoJUL JOISUES | - $80$UBISWNIIID A.m.u_aowg
U 3L Y 194 L jeuos.tad uo buipuadap aAnebau 1o aAljIsod isyjioe Japjo/BunoA
suoido pue joeduwi 1episuod o} Ayunuoddo SOA SOA
. aq p/noo Aauepunpa. [eipusjod  abueyd ajuleq - JO sJaied
oy} yejs buinib ‘sieaf ¢ sano psseyd josloid - )
JOA0 10 ()9 846 JJB)S JO %Gt ‘onijebaN/oAJISO - Buipnjoul) aby
(g ebeig 1k ue|q uonoy JuswaAoidw] By} Ul 8say)
apnjou| os|y) 918 Buuojuow Ajjenba juswa|dwi "JN220 0} sem I JI Joedwl Jo Judixa ay) pue uaddey alslusloeIRYD
: : Ry . 9SIaAPY | BAIISOd
yoleasal ‘uoneynsuod ‘63 ¢(s)joedwi asianpe ay) 01 sI 1 Aj9y1] moy ‘si joedwi siy} 1eym uiejdxg pajo9)0id
aonpa.l JO ajeulwl|d 0} 8.} NOA ued sainseaw Jeypn
¢1oedwi asianpe Aue anowal/aiebiiw |[Im noA moH ¢ uaddey 0} sy} si Ajox1] MOH ¢10edwi aAlIsod 10 8SIaApe ue SI SIY) Jaylaym a)els oS JI
‘1oedwi |eualaylp Jo) [enuajod SMOYSs 82UBpIAS B} JaYlaym JapIsuo) ¢sdnoub jualayip uo joedwi 8y} 1noge noA |8} uoijewlojul JNoA saop JeypA *8

sisAjeuy pue joedw| buissessy :¢ abejs




2102 Ae\ — ¢ uoisIap

"eaJle auo Aue Ul UOI}eJuUSdUOD By} USSSO| O} 818YMas|o |

Aoljod ay} Jo sjo8ye ay) pealds 0} uoisioap e Bujew apnj|c
Aew siy] "uspim JO 8nUIUOD JOU Op pue paluapl usaq aAey ‘a|do: _nN
pajgesip Joj aouejsul siyy ul Aenonted ‘sdnoub Ajjenbas jusiay,,.
usamiaq saljljenbaul jey} ainsus 0} paJapISUOD 8q 0} padU |[IM
‘sainseaw Bunebyiw ayeudosdde pue ‘sjesodold asay; e jo Ayjenba
uo Jo8ye |enuajod pue |enjoe ay] a4 21ignd ui uonedoied s aidoad
pajgesIp uo 108)e jueaiiubls e aAey piNoo seale asay) 0} sabueyo
JO 10818 aAieINwNd 8y} jnq ‘ejdoad pajgesip abejueapesip Aew
sol01j0d 8s8y} JO yoes ul sebueyd [jews ‘Jodsued) AJunwwod pue
sJaied o} a)dsal pue ‘aleo Aep ‘aled |e1oos BuusAlep pue Buipuny ale
asay] ‘saloljod jualayip Inoj 0} sabueyos Bujew si Ajuoyine |e20|
:9|dwex3
"SUOISIOBP By} JO || JO J08Y8 dAlje|NWND 8y} puelsiapun
0] UOIlBWIOJUI JUBABJDJ JUBIDIYNS 8ABY NOA ey} Bulinsua ueaw
PINOM SIY] "S82IAI8S JO MalAal Jolew e Buijonpuod uaym ‘sjdwexs 1o
¢loedwi aane|nwing Aue Jo aieme noA aly — joedwi aAle|nwing 6

(o118

ON ON asea|d) Jay10




210z AeN — ¢ uoisiap

(4 @wooIno 109)9s) ‘|esodo.id ay) yum paadolid jJou pjnoys noA ‘pajebiiw aq jouued pue payisnl jou ale Jey) S}09))e aSIaApe ale aiay) J|

(fesodoud ayy 104 uoneonsnl aAnoalqo si a1ay) Jaylaym ainsun ase noA 1o uone|siba| Ajijenba ay) yoeaiq Aew jesodoud ay; 1eyy
paulaouod aie NoA Ji ‘eoinpe |eba| yoas 0] pabeinoous ale NoA) "Swie 8say)] }9awW 0] pasau ay) 0} sjeuolliodold si abejueapesip ay) Jaylaym pue
[esodoud ayj Jo swie ay} 0} SIYl 3ul| - MOjag BZ LD Ul SIY} Jo} 8q Aew alay) uoneaisnl j1eym 1no 18s ‘anoqe ayj Jo Aue 01 ,saA, paiomsue aney noA ||

‘lesodoud ayj Jo swie ay} aAalyoe 0} ajeuoiuodoud
s| abejueApesip ay} Jayjaym uo apew ag 0} UOISIOap |eul) B 10} JaYeW UoISIoap 8y} 0} pajuasald aq isnw uolewloul siy} ‘siy} 1oy uoneoynsn(
|enuajod e paliuapl aney noA 1nqg (uoneulwudsip jenuajod 1o) abejueapesip Jo 1oedwi asiaApe SNoLIBs 10y [enualod ayl SMoys sisAjeue ayy J|

ON ON ON ON ON ON ON BAI}ISO4 ON
jenusjod SOA
uonejuall ol Aluiaie eIz uswubissea (ERIED (ERIED
NejusLo Xag solled aoey HUISIEN [IAID pue } : d Buipnjour) Buipnjoul)
[enxag pue uoibijoy pue Aoueubald Japua9
abeLue Aljgesiqg aby o

¢ 19y Aujenb3g ay) Jepun 1onpuod payiqiyold Jayjo pue UoNEeSIWNDIA pue JuslusSSeley ‘UOIBUILLIOSIP JO SuonIuljap ay) uo aduepinb Joj sauljepir 6O

ajelodion ay) 03 Jajal ases|d) pabejueapesip Buieq dnoib pajosjoud e ul jnsal Aew sjesodoud JnOA jey) UIadu0d J10 82UBPIAS Aue alay) S| *,.,

SjuaIfo Jo spaau ay) bunjsaw
‘Sjualfo 4oj s8oInIBs mau buipinoid
‘yejs o3 yoddns buipinoid

sjesodo.ud Aq
jow sposu Jaied B Juaied sl

sassoo0.ud Juswebeuew
abueyo ul papoddns Jjjejs ||V

JuswiAojdwe a.nyny
J18y) ayj 4oy suondo usnib a.e jejs
18W 8q 0} BNUIUOD SPBBU JUBIID ||V

(G ebe)s
Je ue|d uoijay Juswaioidwiy ayj ui
way} epnjoul pue a.ay asayj }Si7)
¢Sjuswalinbal Q3sd 9y 198w 0}
)] ued NoA suonoe Aue alay) aly

sdnoub juaisayip wo.l} ajdoad
usamjaeq suonejal poob 18)so

sdnoub
jualaylp woly ajdoad usamiaq
Ajlunuoddo jo Ayjenbs aosueapy

0102 10V Alllenbg
ay} Aq payqiyoud 1onpuod 1ayjo
pue uoiesIWIloIA pue Juswsseley
‘uoneulwldSIp [NMe[UN aleulwi|g

Jualayip usamiaq suoiejas poob 18}so} pue Ajunuoddo jJo Ajjenba adueApe ‘uoljesIWIIOIA pUB Juswsseley ‘UoljeulwudsIp ajeulwl|d o} piebal
anp aAey 0} |1I0UNO) 8y) salinbas yoiym (g3sd) Aing Ayenb3 J1ojosg 21gnd 8y Jo siuswalinbal ay) spiemo) anquiuod sjesodoud JnoA op MOH "0

(019 e dwod ygq a9 |m wawdinba || ‘siaieo/sjualed 1o) sinoy Bupjiom
a|qixa|} ‘sebenbue| AJlunwiwod pue g|ielg ‘uld ablie| ul s|qejieAe aq |Im ainjels)l| ajdwexa 10} ‘sjesodold InoA jJo suonoe aAlisod ay) ||e apnjoul)

‘sdnolb




6 210z AeN —  uoisiop

‘awuwelboid ayy Jnoybnouyy 0} palaype aq |m abuey) |euonesiuebi buibeuey
10} |000}0.d 8y ‘JuswAojdepal 1o} palapisuod aq [|Im Jels ‘AjayI si Aouepunpal -sjesodoid Inok Lum anunw lo'e)
alaym ‘yuepunpal apew aq Aew yels awos ‘JdN.L Jopun siaiddns mau 0} Buluoseal [Ny yum uoneayisnl Jnok uiejdxe _:G ui ..wm>.

0} Jojsues) Aew yejg sjesodoid sy} wolj 99104 HIOM By} Uo sjoedwl 8 [|IM 8I8YL | payoI} aAeY JO € dWOINO Se pPassasse S| v|bJ Jnok j| “ez|

—

(uone|siba| sanienba Japun 1PNPUOD [NJMejUN O} |elluslod ayj Jnoge adIApY |[eba ¥88s 0} pabeinoous ate noA) ‘sdnolb

pajoajo.d aiow 1o auo 0} abejueapesip 1o jJoedwi 9sIaApPe Snouss 10j [enualod sI alay) uaym Huiylal pue doig — ¢ awoanQ
(mojaq ezl ui siyj urejdxa) joedwi ay} Jojuow 03 sueld Jo/pue Joedwi

asJanpe ay} aonpal 0} sue|d JuaIoiyNS aJe 18y} JBY}dYM JBpPISUOD OS|e pP|NOYS NOA "Papaau a(q ||IM suoseal Buljjadwod ‘sased awos
u| - plebal anp, aAey 0} Q3Sd 94l YUM aul| ul 8q pjnoys pue yy|b3 ayj ul papnjoul 8q 0} spasu uoneoynsnl sy ‘eseo siyy uj “Ajjenba
aoueyua 0} saniunuoddo passiw Jo joedwi asiaApe 10} [enuajod paynuapl Buiaey aydsap sjesodousd yjm anuinuo) — € awoayno
SsoA G abejs je ue|d Uoljoy Juswanoldwl ayj ui Siy) Ssaippe 0} aye} o} esodo.id noA suonoe
ayj Jsi7 "v1b3 ay) Ag payuapl usaq aney Ajjenbs aoueyus 1o joedwi asiaApe ajebiiw / 8AowWal 0} sjuswisnlpe Jouly — Z awod3no
‘passalppe buiaq aJe Ajjenba aoueyus 03 saniunuoddo

l|e pue joedwl 8SIaApe 10 }oNpuUod |nymejun 1o} jeiuajod Aue payiuapl jou sey yib3 ayl uaym :patinbas abueyd oN — | awoa3nQ

(Ajuo xoq auo 3213 ) y|b3 4noA JOo BWO2INO BY) SBQLIDSBP 1S8Q SjuaWale)S BuIMo||0) By} JO YoIym d)edlpul asesld “Z1
uoisioa( ¢ abels

(¥ swooino 109)9S) "|Jesodo.id ay} yum paasold jou pjnoys noA ‘uone|siba| saijenba ayj Jopun Jonpuod |nMejun SMoys sisAjeue ay) J|




0T

Z10Z Ae\ —  uoisiop

S)oesJuUoD podsuel) ® | || 8y} buLojiuow 8auewWIOLS -

ON SoA SO ¢,@1e s1asn 92IAI8S JNOA
OUYM MOUY NOA 0 ¢,821AI8S / UOIIDUNy SIY] Jojluow Ajjualind noA oq ‘Gl
joedwi yejs buljijold - (G abejs je ue|d uonoy

Juswanoduwiy ur apnjouj 0SJy) ¢,SIYl Op NOA [|IM Us}J0 MOH ¢ pajuswalduwi
usaq aAey Aay) aouo sjesodoud ayj Jo jJoedwl a8y} Jojyluow NoA |[IM MOH “pL

‘Joedwi ay) ssasse o} eoe|d ul aJe sainseaw BuliojuoL

OAIJ08JJo 8insud 0} Juepoduwil 810jady) SI )i ‘pajuswsldwil usaq aney sjesodoud ayj Jaye umouy aq Ajuo Aew uoisiosp ayj Jo joedull [|n) 8y |
Bulioyuol - 9 abels

aLL02)N0 PalISap

dno.b jusio 4oy Aiddns jo

sJapinoid |eussixe

AON :S}oBJJUOD o\
» SpPaaduU SJ8WojsnI JO oun - aoueinsse bulisiljap % souspuadapul |  wodj Aisaljap ul Aous)sisuod bunjoess - (8IS0 &5
soydiound jsiij je suejs nsd oun .n.tQ alow ‘eaioyo aiow buinib 82INIBS 4 g mau buusyo - |  Ayjqes
ubisap swiweiboid r-LLf 1S/iym sbuines pa.inbai buiraiyoy 82INIBS | || Mau buLayQ -
$s890.d Uole})NSU0I £L02 wayj Joj uondo ybu ayj Jos|es 0} | (esusnpe)
Jejs jo ubisag nsd aunr o} judy | 8jqe % suondo Jo aieme yejs bunjepy 4ejs 01 jioddns buipinOid by

ssalboid

1910
pea]

ale( 1ebue |

awooINQ palisa(

pasodouid uonoy

10edwi
aAnsod
Joslanpe
|lenuajod
JO ealy

"vIb3 a8y} 1noybnouy} paiiauapl suonoe Aue apnjoul pjnoys siy] Juswssasse 1oedwi siy Jo }nsal e se aye) 0} uejd noA suonoe Aue mojaq isi7 "€
(uelgq uonoy Juswanoidwyi) syuswisnlpy bujep :g abeys




Il 2102 Ae|\ — ¢ uoIsIap

"1Jo paubis aq 03 (913q) dnoug yse] sanijenb3z jeyusawiiedaq 1noA o Jieyd ayj 0} Juas aq 0} spaau ylbg pajsjdwod ayy
(dnoug) yse] sanijenb3 jejuswedaq jo sieyn Aq pajsjdwod aq 03) 4O ubis jeuonesiuebiQ - g abejg

219 sdnoub ‘swinloy ‘ydueljul
jouepul uo paysiignd  podsy jouiqen o} payoey - ‘@lisgam [1ouno) 63 ¢ pasiolgnd
9Q Juawssasse Joedwl 8y} ||IM MOH "0
¢ Y1b3 siy Jo ynsal e se BuisiApe noA ale uoijoe JO 8SIn0d JeypA
£S1Y1 Joj suoneoynsnl unoA aie jeym ‘sak §| ¢ paujuapl usaq sey joeduwli
asJoApe ue ybnoyje sjesodoud unoA yum Buipeasoud 1seb6ns nok oq
£,SJaY10 ueyy aiow pajoaye sdnolb senoiued Aue aiay) aly
;ansod pue aslanpe yjoq — syoedwl Aay ay) ale jeypn

aJljoid-ebe abeione

ueyj} J8pJo ue sey jey] 8210I0M 8y} UO }08lo aAljebau [eijusjod -
siapinoid mau wouy Ajddns ur Aousjsisuoo buiyess 1oj posp -
$82IMIBS Mau ybnoay) dnoub jusifo uo joeduwl aaiisod jenusjod -

(912 S0 ‘Aunniog pue malAIBAQ ‘JBuIge)) siaxe!'!
uolsioap ay} 4oy Jaded punoibyoeq e se ajge|ieAe si y|b3 ||} 8y} ainst v
1snw noA Janamoy ‘spodal JnoA ul pasn ag os|e ued uolosas siy| :31¢c ©

Juswissasse ay) Jo Alewwing "6l
"}1senbal uo 21|gnd 8y} JO Si8quuBW 0} d|ge|leAB apew pue 8}ISgam S |Iouno) ayj uo paysiignd aq osie |Im s.y|b3

"WIBY} UIYJIM UOIJO8S JueAd|al 8y} ul papnjoul sbuipuly Aay ay} jo Alewwns e pue spodas 88)1uwod [|e 0} payoene aq isnw y|b3 paje|dwod ay |
sawo9jno buiuoday — ; abejg

‘S|leysp

ON - apinoud ‘os J| ¢passasse Buiaq sjesodoud 1o 108loid ‘uonouny ‘@oInles

‘Ao1jod ay) 1noge spuswijdwod 1o sjulejdwod Aue panledal noA aneH gl

Jeuoizesado usym wesy Jusijo/buiuoissiwiwIod oy bujpoday - (c abe)s 1B ue|4 uondy Juswaoidw) ur spnjoul osly) pasiolagnd
jeuonesado jsjiym pieog swiwelboid o} papoday - pue pauodal ‘pasAjeue aq Bulojuow Aue Jo s}nsal ayj [|IM MOH "L}

a[ljoad juslifo dojyuopy - (G obejS Je

sessaoo0.d Juswabeuew joesuo) - ueld uonay juswanoidwy ur epnjouj os|y) ¢siesodoud unoA jo Buuojuow

joedwir yejs Buljijoid - | OAI}BYS 8INSuUd 0} PAONPOJIUI 8q 0} Peau sainseaw Buuojuow jeypn ‘9L




4!

2102 Ae\ — ¢ uoisIap

84

€102 ludy ¥

:e1eq

:e1eq

Aojebag pieyory

(913Q Jo Jiey) :paubis

(v1b3 Bunajdwos sa21)j0 pea) :paubis

dno.b aaueinssy Ajend v|©3 S82IAI8S S,usipliyD) 8y} JO SIoquIB) -

¢ueld

uonoYy JuswaAoidw| 8y} pue y|b3
3y} paalbe pue pamairal ‘palapISU0D
99)ILWO09 40 dnoub YdIypa “Le




Appendix 5
Submission by the Corporate Director of Children and Families

Special Needs Transport 3
Call-in report supporting information

Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision:
Consultation to date

Prior to the decision of Cabinet on 11 April 2013, there had been consultation with the
trade unions and staff, details of which are set out below. However, it is accepted that the
report did not contain details of this consultation or any responses received. This detail is
included in this appendix and Cabinet are requested to consider it when deciding whether
to confirm its decision of 11 April 2013.

Unions: Discussions with Unions during the research phase were held at the Children and
Families DJC where the possibility of further externalisation was referred to on 15" May &
10™ July 2012.

The programme proposals were then confirmed and discussed with Unions again on 19"
March 2013. At this meeting it was made clear that externalisation was the option being
pursued. The union representative confirmed that the union would consider submitting a
response. It is understood that a letter was sent direct to the Leader asking for
reconsideration but no alternative proposals were submitted for consideration.

Staff: The programme has been developed with members of the special needs transport
management team who work closely with their staff and have been integral board
members. Their input has been vital in shaping the overall approach.

A meeting with the whole of the management team was held on 21° November 2012 and
on 20™ March 2013, when proposals were discussed.

The whole workforce were written to on 20" March inviting them to one of two all-staff
meetings held on the 28™ March at times of the day intended to best accommodate
peoples availability. These sessions were attended by approximately 40% of the staff.

Questions and views arising from these meetings included the following:

- the possibility of an in-house option

- the possibility of offering a lower level of service at a cheaper cost

- concern about loss of the ‘hidden values’ of the in-house service

- questions around the use of local providers

- the West London Alliance proposal

- what steps the Council was taking to increase its grant from central government

- where the savings come from with the use of external suppliers

- whether the staff profile was considered in the EqIA

- whether there are further savings by managing the vehicle supplier more effectively
- what trade union consultation had taken place

85



- the risk of a fragmented TUPE process

- whether voluntary severance, redundancy or redeployment was a possibility
- whether the proposals incorporate escorts

- how contracts will be managed

- why some parents do not pay for transport

It was planned to give written responses to these questions after the Cabinet decision,
although this was put on hold following the call-in of the decision.

In response to some of the points raised above, alternative options around changes to the
in-house service have been considered previously but the running cost of the service and
the long term vehicle leases mean that high levels of savings are not possible. The West
London Alliance proposal to have a single transport hub was trialled in September 2012
and plans are on hold as the arrangements cannot demonstrate sufficient reliability and
overall benefits to Harrow Council service users. Many of the questions raise issues that
are relevant for consideration during the transition and implementation phases of any
proposed externalisation.

Future Consultation

If agreement is given to the proposal to externalise the service in a phased way, the
timetable incorporates a 2 month consultation phase to consider the detail of the proposal
and its implementation. This, together with the earlier consultation, meets the
requirements of the Council’s agreed Protocol for Managing Organisational Change
(PMOC). The PMOC has been developed with staff and unions and in adhering to the
PMOC the programme is consistent and compliant with Council procedures.

This approach will also include the establishment of a partnership board that will include
members of trade unions, staff and if possible service users or representatives.

Service users: The Cabinet report made it clear that service users would be consulted on
the proposed new transport eligibility policy (section 2.13 & 2.14 of the Cabinet Report).
We would also use this engagement opportunity to help ensure there is a smooth transition
between providers and that new providers are appropriately ready and prepared to provide
services (see section 11.19 of the Business Case, and section 2.13 & 2.14 of the Cabinet
Report).

Recommendation

Given that trades unions and staff members have expressed significant interest in the key
decision to externalise a greater percentage of the service, the recommendation is that
Cabinet reconsider the key decision in September to allow fuller consultation with trades
unions, staff and service users for the decision to be made with the benefit of the
consultation responses.

86



	Agenda
	3 Future Organisation of Cannon Lane First School (4-7 Years) and Cannon Lane Junior School
	Canon Lane - AppendixA
	Canon Lane - AppendixBCLFSrepresentation
	Canon Lane - AppendixCCLJSGBRepresentation
	CanonLane - AppendixDRepresentationfromaparentundated

	4 Special Needs Transport Change Programme 3 (SNT 3) - Referral by Call-in Sub-Committee
	SNT 3 - App1 - CallInNoticeNoSignatures
	SNT 3 - App2 - CallinMinutes29April2013
	SNT3 - App 3 - MinuteExtractSNT3Callin
	SNT3 - App 4 - MainReportA
	SNT3 - App 4 - FullEQIAA
	SNT3 - App 5 - AdditionalInformation


